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Financial Data for 11 Years

Financial items

*Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Unit FY2013 Fy2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2023
Orders received M;!isn 189,026 187,311 221,764 218,323 219,844 241,889 226,909 200,469 232,120 288,670 263,549 1,740,749

Paint Finishing System o 70,046 67,614 77,735 76,085 92,029

Ratio of overseas sales % 61.6 552 55.5 493 50.1
. peratmgmcome ......................................................... My‘!';’” .................. L Lo 12180 .........
Ranoofoperatmgmcometonm o L o DO Lo L
. rdmarymcome ........................................................... My‘glnon .................. L 12343 L 13082 .........
.................................... i reenTEChmlogysystem . My‘!';m 4449 L 11885
SOQMENE PIOFIt e

Paint Finishing System e 4,506 3,260 3,524 (115) 1,160
Ratloofordmarymcomemnetsa|es R L L . L
PromatmbutabmmOwnersofparem .................... My‘!';’” .................. 4155 6084 ............................ : 084 6305 7254 .........
. OneqUIW(ROE) T S SO o R o
L My‘!';m ............. 166680 188283 189566 199024 ...................... 215392 .........
B My‘glnon ................ o . 9669 ......................... o 100184 110650 .........
Equnyrano T W Lo U O e
B Operatmgactlvmes ........................ My‘!fn .................. 7532 ............................ 1401 ............................. : 301 6679 9337 .........
B, mvesmgamvmes ......................... S (1194) ......................... (39()0) (328) ......................... (6505) ........................... 1390 .........

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Million (1,734) (1.247) (1,941) (1,807) 3

intangible assets yen

74,882 42,960 77,041 coanen
485 37.5 P 4 59 ,,,,,,,
9,428 11,556 18,270 120679 """""
45 54 SR 52 ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
10,818 13,001 19,852 131125 .......
2,302 14,599 17,027 112470 """""
667 (1,606) 2804 18526 """""

5.2 6.1 S 68 ,,,,,,,
7,248 7,917 15,602 103055 .......
5.9 6.3 B 116 .......
228,159 237,105 S 1760199 .......
130,788 131,992 i 1001070 .......
54.7 53.1 B 540 .......
(8,544) 4,806 20,738 136979 .......

(2,314) (2,176) (3,885) (25,664)

Per share data:

*U.S. dollars

Profit attributable to owners of parent Yen 116.08 172.64 204.35 183.16 212.40
Netassers ...................................................................... Yen 228256 269076 263360 279930 308751 ..........
Annualdmdend ............................................................. Yen 45 .................................. 5 2 .................................. 6 7 .................................. 7 0 75 .........
Dlwdendpayounano et % 388 ............................. 301 328 382 ............................. 353 .........
TOtalremmratlo et % 805 302 638 .............................. 5 40 ............................. 422 .........

212.69 234.62 471.94 i1
3,658.54 3,788.75 e BN M
100 121 I 087 .......
47.0 51.6 S e
47.2 89.3 e e

*The U.S. dollar amounts are translated on the basis of nearly 151.40 yen to 1 dollar, the rate of exchange prevailing at March 31, 2024.
* As the Company has been applying the Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No.28, February 16, 2018) since FY2018,
the consolidated financial position of FY2017 is calculated after retrospectively applying the said accounting standard, etc. Therefore, the indicators and others for FY2017 reflect those retrospective adjustments.
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Financial Sections

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (OVERVIEW)

The results for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions

The consolidated financial statements of the Taikisha Group are
prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted
in Japan. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, some
accounting estimates that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses
during the reporting period are made in accordance with the
accounting standards.

Please refer to “NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, 2. Summary of significant accounting policies, (12)
Significant accounting estimates.

Due to the uncertain nature of estimates, actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Earnings Overview

In this fiscal year, the global economy remained unstable due to
increasing geopolitical risks in regions including Eastern Europe and
the Middle East, as well as continuous inflation. In the U.S., despite
concerns of an economic recession against a backdrop of prolonged
inflation and high interest rates, personal consumption and
employment conditions remained favorable, and the economy
remained strong. In China, the economy slowed down due to
sluggish domestic and foreign demand, particularly in the real estate
market. In Southeast Asia, although there was a recovery in domestic
demand due to improvements in employment and public investment,
the pace of growth decelerated due to the slowdown of overseas
economies. Although the Japanese economy normalized to a degree
due to improvements in employment and income conditions, the
outlook remains uncertain due to financial policies and geopolitical
risks overseas.

Among the market environments of the Taikisha Group, in
overseas markets, capital investment by various manufacturers
remained strong, despite concerns about a slowdown in the global
economy.

On the other hand, in the domestic market, investments by
semiconductor-related and automobile manufacturers continued, and
the demand for redevelopment in urban areas remained strong.

Under such circumstances, in order to achieve medium- to
long-term growth, the Taikisha Group promotes the following
initiatives.

Firstly, as an initiative for “horizontal deployment of strength of
technology” which is stated in the Mid-Term Business Plan, the
Company developed the target-guided airflow system “FOLLOAS." It
is an air-outlet system that can follow the movement of people by
utilizing image recognition technology. It is expected to improve
workers' comfort and reduce energy consumption and CO2 emissions
by reducing the overall air supply volume.

Individual air conditioning systems with fixed air outlets have
been installed in conventional factories, although they do not cover
the entire range of worker movements, making factory operations in
the summer times sometimes difficult.

The Company has been developing ICT-based technology, focusing
especially on applying image recognition technology to existing
technologies. The Company has developed a product that changes
the direction of air supply following the subject by combining the air
conditioning control technology that the Company had been
developing over many years with image recognition technology to
create personal air conditioning.

Currently, the Company has already been introducing these
systems to customers who consider improving the working
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environment, prepare for the heat, and saving energy of the entire
factory. The Company has started mass production based on the
results of trial installations and durability verification in several
factories.

Secondly, through the initiative in PF System Division
“development with an awareness of global issues”, the Taikisha
Group subsidiary TKS Industrial Company (currently Taikisha USA,
Inc.) gave a presentation jointly with Nippon Paint Automotive
Coatings Co., Ltd on dry decoration at the International Automotive
Body Finishing Conference, “SURCAR 6th AMERICAN CONGRESS" in
Detroit, USA, one of the most prestigious international conferences in
the automotive coating industry, in June 2023. As a result, they
received the Jury’s Award, which is granted to the presentation that
receives the highest evaluation from the judges. Dry decoration has
had issues related to the size and shape of the coated object that can
be decorated. This presentation was highly praised for realizing dry
decoration even on integral-type bumpers with a height of 700 mm
or more and a large curvature without wrinkles and with reduced
color tone changes by controlling the film extension percentage to
100% or less.

In order to establish the process line of dry decoration, the
Company is planning to construct the demo-line in our R&D facility
by fall 2024 to prepare for mass production.

The Company will contribute to the realization of decarbonized
society through the technological development of dry decoration as a
value-added technology for automobile exteriors.

Given such circumstances, due to reactionary decline from large
orders received in the previous fiscal year, consolidated orders
received decreased 8.7% year-on-year to ¥263,549 million,
decreasing both in Japan and overseas. This includes orders received
overseas, which decreased 15.3% year-on-year to ¥115,142 million.

Consolidated net sales of completed construction contracts
increased 36.7% year-on-year to ¥293,556 million, increasing both
in Japan and overseas. This includes net sales of completed
construction contracts overseas, which increased 71.0% year-on-year
to ¥137,792 million.

In regard to profits, gross profit on completed construction
contracts increased ¥10,240 million year-on-year to ¥43,312 million,
operating income increased ¥6,714 million year-on-year to ¥18,270
million, ordinary income increased ¥6,850 million year-on-year to
¥19,852 million, and profit attributable to owners of parent increased
¥7,685 million year-on-year to ¥15,602 million.

Earnings by reportable segment (including intersegment
transactions) are as follows.

Green Technology System

Consolidated orders received decreased compared to the previous
fiscal year, as orders decreased in Japan, China, Taiwan, and other
countries, mainly due to a reactionary decline from the large orders
received in the previous fiscal year in the industrial HVAC sector. The
consolidated net sales of completed construction contacts increased
compared to the previous fiscal year, due to increases in Japan,
Taiwan, and other countries.

As a result, consolidated orders received decreased 17.4%
year-on-year to ¥171,902 million. The breakdown is orders received
for building HVAC of ¥36,205 million which increased 0.0% year-on-
year and orders received for industrial HVAC of ¥135,697 million
which decreased 21.1% year-on-year. Consolidated net sales of
completed construction contracts increased 26.0% year-on-year to
¥216,535 million. The breakdown is sales for building HVAC of
¥40,756 million which decreased 10.1% year-on-year and sales for

industrial HVAC of ¥175,778 million which increased 38.9% year-on-
year. Segment profit (ordinary income) increased ¥2,428 million
year-on-year to ¥17,027 million.

Paint Finishing System

Consolidated orders received increased compared to the previous
fiscal year, due to increases in North America and other regions. The
consolidated net sales of completed construction contracts increased
compared to the previous fiscal year, due to increases in regions such
as North America and Korea.

As a result, consolidated orders received increased 13.7%
year-on-year to ¥91,646 million and consolidated net sales of
completed construction contracts increased 79.3% year-on-year to
¥77,041 million. Segment profit (ordinary income) was ¥2,804
million (segment loss of ¥1,606 million in the previous fiscal year).

Financial Condition
Assets
As of March 31, 2024, current assets increased 10.2% year-on-year
to ¥203,374 million. This is mainly due to increase in securities of
¥9,000 million and cash and deposits of ¥8,474 million.
Non-current assets increased 19.9% year-on-year to ¥63,119
million. This is mainly due to increase in investment securities of
¥4,392 million and net defined benefit asset of ¥2,986 million.
As a result, total assets increased 12.4% year-on-year to
¥266,494 million.
Assets by reportable segment are as follows.

Green Technology System

As of March 31, 2024, current assets decreased 9.6% year-on-year
to ¥105,759 million. This is mainly due to decrease in notes
receivables, accounts receivable from completed construction
contracts and other of ¥8,514 million and cash and deposits of
¥2,886 million.

Non-current assets increased 30.2% year-on-year to ¥37,267
million. This is mainly due to increase in construction in process of
¥2,684 which is included in “other"” of property, plant and
equipment, and investment securities of ¥5,691 million.

As a result, total assets decreased 1.7% year-on-year to ¥143,027
million.

Paint Finishing System
As of March 31, 2024, current assets increased 58.4% year-on-year
to ¥58,826 million. This is mainly due to increase in notes receivable,
accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other
of ¥16,532 million and cash and deposits of ¥4,281 million.
Non-current assets decreased 12.4% year-on-year to ¥10,648
million. This is mainly due to decrease in investment securities of
¥1,299 million.
As a result, total assets increased 40.9% year-on-year to ¥69,474
million.

Liabilities

As of March 31, 2024, current liabilities increased 7.9% year-on-year
to ¥103,504 million. This is mainly due to increase in notes payable,
accounts payable for construction contracts and other of ¥9,395
million and income taxes payable of ¥2,699 million despite decrease
in advances received on uncompleted construction contracts of
¥9,407 million.

Non-current liabilities increased 24.6% year-on-year to ¥11,427
million. This is mainly due to increase in deferred tax liabilities of
¥2,019 million.

As a result, total liabilities increased 9.3% year-on-year to
¥114,932 million.

Net assets

As of March 31, 2024, total net assets increased 14.8% year-on-year
to ¥151,562 million. This is mainly due to increase in retained
earnings of ¥11,572 million, valuation difference on available-for-
sale securities of ¥3,837 million, and foreign currency translation
adjustment of ¥2,977 million, despite decrease in purchase and
disposal of treasury shares of ¥1,810 million.

Cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (collectively, “Cash") as of March 31,
2023 and 2024 were ¥43,946 million and ¥63,265 million
respectively. Compared to the previous year, it increased ¥19,319
million.

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended March 31,
2023 and 2024 totaled ¥4,806 million and ¥20,738 million
respectively. Cash increased mainly due to recording of profit before
income taxes and increase in notes payable, accounts payable for
construction contracts and other, although decreased mainly due to
decrease in advances received on uncompleted construction
contracts.

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash used in investing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023
was ¥1,748 million, and cash provided by investing activities for the
year ended March 31, 2024 was ¥2,148 million. Cash increased
mainly due to proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits and
proceeds from sales of investment securities, although decreased
mainly due to payments into time deposits and purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash used in financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023
and 2024 totaled ¥9,822 million and ¥5,545 million respectively.
Cash decreased mainly due to cash dividends paid, net increase in
treasury shares, and cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests.

Business and Other Risks

Major risk factors that may significantly affect the financial condition,

business performance and cash flows of the Taikisha Group, as

recognized by senior management, are noted below.
Forward-looking statements in this section are based on

judgments made by the Taikisha Group as of March 31, 2024.

Risk of Changes in Private Capital Investment

Changes in the environment for orders may significantly affect sales
and profit in the Taikisha Group's businesses. In the Green Technology
System Division, this may be caused by reduction in overseas
investment by Japanese companies. In the Paint Finishing System
Division, this may be caused by continued shrinkage of domestic
manufacturing by Japanese automobile manufacturers, or reduction
in new capital investment due to sluggish worldwide car sales. The
Taikisha Group's business performance and other results may be
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affected by a decrease in the amount of orders received due to these
factors. In addition, if the Taikisha Group fails to keep up with the
change of production facility of automobile manufacturers that
contributes to realization of carbon neutrality, the Taikisha Group may
lose customers and the business performance and other results may
also be affected.

In response, Green Technology System Division will work overseas
to strengthen its sales structure targeting local companies, and
promote initiatives to increase orders from Japanese manufacturers
in collaboration with sales team in Japan. Paint Finishing System
Division will accelerate the development of the Company’s technology
that introduces change the production facility of customers that
contributes to realization of carbon neutrality, and will aim to expand
automation business from the conventional 4-wheel and 2-wheel
vehicle markets to other industries by the Company’s automation
technology.

Risk Associated with Large-Scale Disasters

The Taikisha Group's business performance and other results may be
affected by losses sustained due to natural disasters, such as
earthquakes, tsunamis, wind or water damage, or a global spread of
infections and other diseases in regions where the Taikisha Group
does business. Furthermore, in the case of large-scale, widespread
natural disasters, the Taikisha Group’s business performance and
other results may be affected not only by the direct damage to
property and people, but also by the long-term impact on customers’
business activities and the larger economic climate.

In order to prepare for the possible occurrence of unforeseen
disasters, accidents or events in Japan or overseas, the Taikisha Group
has established a basic policy for crisis management and constructed
a crisis management system. Should a crisis occur, it will be classified
into one of three levels depending on its impact on personal safety
and business continuity. Crisis countermeasures will be implemented
based on these levels.

Risk Associated with Overseas Business and the
Management and Control of Overseas Subsidiaries

and Associates

Unforeseen changes in laws and regulations, political instability and
other factors in the overseas regions where the Taikisha Group
operates could affect its business results. The Taikisha Group may
sustain losses due to fluctuations in exchange rates pertaining to the
payments and collections for foreign currency construction contracts.
In addition, exchange rates could affect the Taikisha Group's business
performance and other results because the financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated into Japanese yen
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, the
Taikisha Group's business performance and other results may be
affected by a deterioration in the results of overseas subsidiaries and
associates, such as the failure to achieve business plan targets, due
to bad debt because of bankruptcy of customers, the occurrence of
problems that could not be predicted, or for which risk
countermeasures that could not be implemented and so on.

In response, the Taikisha Group collects information on political,
economic and statutory changes in the overseas regions in which it
operates, and strives to control country risks and overseas legal and
regulatory risks. The Taikisha Group implements forward exchange
contracts and other instruments to hedge currency risks arising from
payments and collections for foreign currency construction contracts,
strengthens credit control before receiving orders to reduce the risk
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of receivables to become uncollectible, and avoids such kinds of risks
as much as possible. It will also continue to enhance the governance
structure of its overseas subsidiaries and associates.

Risk Associated with Technological Development

Should the Taikisha Group experience delays in the development of
systems to meet increasing customer needs, such as carbon neutrality,
energy saving, enhanced environmental measures and automation,
its technological differentiation with competitors cannot be
generated, and its business performance and other results may be
affected by the resulting loss of opportunities to receive orders, as
well as deterioration in customer trust and corporate reputation.

In response, the Taikisha Group endeavors to solve social issues
through the development and demonstration of technologies aimed
at reducing environmental impact to deal with decarbonization
business in order to realize carbon neutrality, as well as automation
technologies which is the strength technology of the Company. To
this end, the Company will utilize the Technology Development
Center and R&D satellite facility “TAIKISHA INNOVATION GATE
Shinjuku” at the head office of Shinjuku, so that it expands
communication, integrates solution inside and outside the company,
and excavates innovation, and at the same time, by leveraging digital
technologies, strengthening initiatives across the Group, and
promoting development of innovative technologies by collaborating
with academic institutions and start-up companies, the Taikisha
Group will engage in themes that anticipate social needs.

Risk Associated with Human Resources to Execute Projects
Construction and equipment installation work, the Taikisha Group's
business field, is heavily reliant on human resources. In Japan, the
Taikisha Group's business results may be affected by inability to build
the operational structures required to achieve medium- to long-term
plans, with the concern of shortage in skilled and experienced
engineers due to the aging population and delays in personnel
development, as well as reduction of total working hours of
engineering employees are expected due to the limitation of overtime
work which has been applied also in construction industry from April
2024. Overseas, long-term business development may also be
affected if the core human resources necessary to guide the
localization of the Taikisha Group's businesses cannot be secured,
due to factors such as delays in the development of local staff and
employee turnover.

In response, the Taikisha Group will work to enhance employees’
technical skills and develop human resources, by improving their
basic technical capabilities through training, as well as on-site
practical instruction. At the same time, it will endeavor to secure
human resources, leveraging digital technology to increase
productivity, promote work style reforms, and create attractive
workplaces.

Overseas, the Taikisha Group will strive to secure and develop
core human resources, and promote localization, through the
introduction of a global personnel system.

In addition, in order to sustain and promote employees' healthy
mind and body, the Company announced “Health management
declaration” in 2020, and clarified health management promotion
system with President and Representative Director to become the
supervisor of health control.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance Risk

The Taikisha Group's business fields are subject to a range of legal
restrictions, including the Construction Business Act, the
Antimonopoly Act, and the Labor Standards Act. The Taikisha Group’s
business performance and other results may be affected by
restrictions placed upon its business activities, if any of these laws
and regulations are violated by the actions of its officers or
employees.

In response, the Taikisha Group will endeavor to create a
corporate culture and mechanisms to prevent rule violations. It will
engage in continuing implementation and follow-up of its compliance
education program such as e-learning, as well as conducting survey
of compliance attitude which leads to inspect the effectiveness of
compliance activities and reflect to improvement process, in order to
maintain and increase employee awareness of legal and regulatory
compliance.

Risk of Serious Accidents and Quality Defects

In the event of serious accidents during construction, or critical
contract nonconformity due to such as critical quality defects, the
Taikisha Group's social credit would be damaged, and its business
results may be affected. The Taikisha Group takes contract conformity
responsibility with customers guaranteeing construction against
defects for fixed period of time after completion of construction. The
Taikisha Group allocates a provision for warranties for completed
construction to cover repair costs based on previous warranty
experience. However, Taikisha Group's business performance and
other results might be affected should the costs exceed the balance
of the provision.

In response, the Taikisha Group strives to strengthen the
management system and takes all possible measures for safety and
health management at construction sites through improving safety
awareness and level by promoting the use of safety-related ICT and
DX, reducing on-site construction risks by adopting factory-processed
products, and instructing as well as checking partner companies to
create detailed work procedure diagrams. In addition, the Taikisha
Group is enforcing the structure of assuring the technical quality on a
company-wide basis by reviewing the construction management
system, promoting the introduction of digital technology in
construction management, sharing of information regarding quality,
and working to prevent quality defects by establishing a company-
wide committee.

Risk of Changes in Material Prices and Unit Labor Costs
Sharp rises in material prices due to the rise of fuel prices and so on,
and sharp rises in unit labor costs due to declining birthrate and
aging population as well as lack of successors, could affect the
Taikisha Group's business performance and other results if the
Taikisha Group is unable to reflect them to contract prices.

In response, the Taikisha Group endeavors to control the risk of
changes in material prices and unit labor costs through measures
such as identifying reasonable costs for each region when it receives
orders, and hedging the risk of price fluctuations in contracts.

Risk Associated with the Leakage of Confidential
Information

Cyber-attacks are becoming increasingly sophisticated, diverse, and
devious each year. If confidential information, such as personal
information or customer information, is leaked through these
cyber-attacks, the intentional, dishonest actions of an employee, or

other means, the Taikisha Group’s business performance and other
results may be affected by the results of this leak, such as loss of
credit and liability for compensation payments.

In response, the Taikisha Group will formulate a roadmap for risk
mitigation measures, which will be implemented at each Group
company based on the results of the Group's IT security assessment.
In addition, in the effort to prevent the leakage of confidential
information, the Company has established an IT incident response
system (Taikisha version of CSIRT) and has been promoting education
for all employees, such as IT security e-learning, targeted attack
e-mail training and so on.

Risk Associated with the Climate Change

In the transition of society toward decarbonization, policies, laws,
technologies, and markets change, and these may affect companies’
finance and reputation in various ways. Also for the Taikisha Group,
there are risks that its earnings, etc. may be affected by transitional
and physical risks, such as loss of customers due to failing to adapt
successfully to customers' climate change correspondence,
deterioration of competitiveness due to the delay of development of
carbon neutral correspondence technologies, cost increase due to
introduction of carbon tax, decline in labor productivity due to the
rise in the average temperature, and project cancellation due to the
increase of heat days, etc.

In response, the Taikisha Group will work on development of low
carbon construction technology and system such as downsizing of
facilities and saving energy, expanding construction of saving energy
facilities such as net zero energy building of factories, promoting
mechanization and automating constructions, and so on.

Risk Associated with the Human Rights

If the Taikisha Group’s business activities cause or encourage
negative impacts on human rights, the Taikisha Group's operating
results may be affected by additional costs related to corrective or
remedial measures, or stagnation of business activities due to a loss
of public trust.

As a company with global operations, the Taikisha Group
recognizes respect for human rights as one of the most important
matters, and has established the Taikisha Group Human Rights Policy
as a code of conduct for human rights in the Taikisha Group's
business activities. Under the policy, the Group is committed to
reducing and preventing human rights risks by promoting initiatives
to respect human rights, including compliance with governance,
implementation of human rights due diligence throughout the supply
chain, and education and awareness-raising activities for officers and
employees.

Subsidiaries and associates

Taikisha Group consists of Taikisha Ltd., 32 subsidiaries, and 3
associates. Taikisha Ltd., 4 subsidiaries and 1 associate are domiciled
in Japan, and 28 subsidiaries and 2 associates are domiciled overseas.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Taikisha Ltd. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024

Thousands of

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars Millions of yen Us. dollars
Assets 2023 2024 2024 Liabilities and Net assets 2023 2024 2024
. Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts
Cash and deposits (Note 3(3)) ¥46,988 ¥55,462 $366,333 and other (Note 3(7)) ¥55.472 ¥64,867 $428,452
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction Short-term loans payable 2,942 3,747 24,754
contracts and other (Note 3(1) (7)) 124,236 125,357 827,990 Income taxes payable 1,772 4,472 29,538
L _ Advances received on uncompleted construction contracts 23,306 13,899 91,803
Securities 9,000 29,445 Provision for warranties for completed construction 614 698 4,611
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts 2,346 2,274 15,026 Provision for loss on construction contracts 300 364 2,410
- . Provision for directors’ bonuses 71 173 1,149
Raw materials and supplies 843 1,092 7,217 Other 11,460 15.281 100,932
Other 10,721 11,209 74,038 Total current liabilities 95,940 103,504 683,649
Non-current liabilities:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (668) (1,023) (6,758) Long-term loans payable 08 143 948
Total current assets 184,467 203,374 1,343,291 Deferred tax liabilities 7,034 9,053 59,798
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits 56 39 262
Provision for share awards - 30 202
Non-current assets: Provision for share awards for directors 212 270 1,790
Property, plant and equipment Net defined benefit liability 1,343 1,377 9,101
! Other 427 511 3,379
Buildings and structures 8,043 8,636 57,044 Total non-current liabilities 9,172 11,427 75,480
Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures (Note 3(3)) 7,852 8,562 56,556 Total liabilties ¥105,112 2,237 skl
Land 1,705 1,782 11,770 Net assets:
Shareholders’ equity
Other 1,163 3,996 26,395 Capital stock
Accumulated depreciation (10,207) (11,282) (74,524) Authorized: 100,000,000 shares
Total property, plant and equipment 8,557 11,694 77,241 Issued: gggg%ggg Zﬂgpgi gz 81t mg:gp g] %8%2 ¥6,455 ¥6,455 $42,637
Capital surplus 3,540 3,620 23,911
) Retained earnings 100,296 111,869 738,898
Intangible assets Treasury shares, at cost — 380,689 shares as of March 31,2023 (1,158) = =
Goodwill 3,640 3,528 23,305 759,124 shares as of March 31,2024 - (2,969) (19,614)
Total shareholders’ equity 109,133 118,974 785,832
Customer-related assets 1.184 1,146 7,570 Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other 1,104 1,275 8,424 Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 10,535 14,373 94,935
- - Deferred gains or losses on hedges (63) (57) (382)
Total intangible assets 5,929 5,949 39,299 Foreign currency translation adjustment 4,779 7,757 51,237
Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans 1,405 2,981 19,696
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 16,657 25,054 165,486
Investments and other assets Non-controlling interests 6,201 7,532 49,752
Investment securities (Note 3(2)) 26,487 30,879 203,961 Total net assets 131,992 151,562 1,001,070
Total liabilities and net assets ¥237,105 ¥266,494 $1,760,199
Deferred tax assets 582 846 5,594
Net defined benefit asset 8,595 11,582 76,501 Per share data : Yen U.S. dollars
Other 2,993 2.875 18,992 Net assets ¥3,788.75 ¥4,388.08 $28.98
Allowance for doubtful accounts (507) (708) (4,680) Basis of calculation Millions of yen TBC.)SU.SSQICIiaSrgf
Total investments and other assets 38,152 45,475 300,368 Total net assets ¥131,992 ¥151,562 $1,001,070
Total non-current assets 52,638 63,119 416,908 Amounts to be deducted from net assets (Non-controlling interests) (6,201) (7,532) (49,752)
Net assets applicable to common shares 125,791 144,029 951,318
Total assets ¥237,105 ¥266,494 $1,760,199 Number of common shares as of the year-end (thousands of shares) 33,201 32,822 32,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Taikisha Ltd. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Consolidated Statements of Income
Net sales of completed construction contracts (Note 4(1)) ¥214,793 ¥293,556 $1,938,947
Cost of sales of completed construction contracts (Note 4(7)) 181,721 250,244 1,652,869
Gross profit on completed construction contracts 33,071 43,312 286,078
Selling, general and administrative expenses:
Directors’ compensations 915 886 5,858
Employees’ salaries and allowances 8,157 10,449 69,018
Provision for directors’ bonuses 71 173 1,149
Retirement benefit expenses 330 294 1,944
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits 1 10 70
Provision for share awards for directors 67 171 1,134
Provision for share awards - 30 202
Correspondence and transportation expenses 1,091 1,375 9,083
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts 332 587 3,880
Rents 1,322 1,289 8,518
Depreciation 1,578 1,098 7,253
Amortization of goodwill 462 4384 3,197
Other 7,172 8,189 54,093
Total selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 4(2)) 21,515 25,041 165,399
Operating income 11,556 18,270 120,679
Non-operating income:
Interest income 324 897 5,927
Dividend income 698 681 4,499
Dividend income of insurance 178 188 1,248
Real estate rent 112 113 748
Foreign exchange gains 78 = =
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts 0 - -
Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method - 22 145
Other 372 283 1,872
Total non-operating income 1,766 2,186 14,439
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expenses 152 240 1,590
Rent expenses on real estates 15 15 105
Foreign exchange losses - 274 1,816
Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts - 0 1
Share of loss of entities accounted for using equity method 3 - -
Other 149 72 480
Total non-operating expenses 320 604 3,992
Ordinary income 13,001 19,852 131,126
Extraordinary income:
Gain on disposal of non-current assets (Note 4(3)) 18 13 88
Gain on sales of investment securities 1,844 3,167 20,919
Gain on sale of shares of subsidiaries and associates 881 - -
Total extraordinary income 2,744 3,180 21,007
Extraordinary losses:
Loss on disposal of non-current assets (Note 4(4)) 57 31 208
Impairment loss (Note 4(5)) 642 0 0
Loss on sale of investment securities 0 - -
Loss on valuation of investment securities 21 0 0
Loss on sale of shares of subsidiaries and associates 3 - -
Business restructuring expenses (Note 4(6)) 2,461 - -
Total extraordinary losses 3,188 31 208
Profit before income taxes 12,557 23,001 151,925
Income taxes-current 4,002 6,733 44,474
Income taxes-deferred (286) (491) (3,244)
Total income taxes 3,716 6,242 41,230
Profit 8,841 16,759 110,695
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 924 1,156 7,640
Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥7,917 ¥15,602 $103,055
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Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Profit ¥8,841 ¥16,759 $110,695
Other comprehensive income:
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (1,372) 3,837 25,346
Deferred gains or losses on hedges (38) 5 37
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2,664 3,382 22,345
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (516) 1,583 10,459
Share of other comprehensive income of entities accounted for using equity method 29 28 190
Total other comprehensive income (Note 5(1)) 765 8,838 58,377
Comprehensive income ¥9,607 ¥25,597 $169,072
Comprehensive income attributable to :
Owners of parent ¥8,467 ¥23,999 $158,518
Non-controlling interests 1,139 1,597 10,554
Yen U.S. dollars
Per share data:
Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥234.62 ¥471.94 $3.12
Cash dividends ¥121.00 ¥131.00 $0.87
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Basis of calculation
Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥7,917 ¥15,602 $103,055
Profit attributable to owners of parent for common shares 7,917 15,602 103,055
Average number of common shares (thousands of shares) 33,744 33,060 33,060

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Taikisha Ltd. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Shareholders" equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
Capitsl Capiltal Retained Triasury sharlgga\‘ders' di%:&:éan;clgln‘ Dgﬁgseigzws c':tj)rrrTelr?gy Re'gﬁa;gf'iﬁ?jms accumJlg?d other con’\:%“\'ng Total
stoc| surpius earnings shares equity EVE\SaecuEm?efSSa e ;Eja]lai::;lé)r:lt benefit plans com‘;r)lrcemszswe interests net assets
Balance at the beginning of
current period ¥6,455  ¥5,058 ¥99,893 ¥(2,544) ¥108,862 ¥11,908 ¥(25) ¥2,017 ¥1,932 ¥15,833  ¥6,092 ¥130,788
Changes of items during the period
Dividends of surplus (4,093) (4,093) (4,093)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 7,917 7,917 7,917
Purchase of treasury shares (3,001) (3,001) (3,001)
Disposal of treasury shares - -
Cancellation of treasury shares (116)  (4,270) 4,386 - -
Purchase of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries (1,401) (1,401) (1,401)
Sale of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries 850 850 850
Net changes of items other than
shareholders' equity (1,372) (38) 2,761 (526) 824 109 933
Total changes of items during the period - (1,517 403 1,385 271 (1,372) (38) 2,761 (526) 824 109 1,204
Balance at the end of current period  ¥6,455  ¥3,540 ¥100,296 ¥(1,158) ¥109,133 ¥10,535 ¥(63) ¥4,779 ¥1,405  ¥16,657  ¥6,201 ¥131,992
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Shareholders" equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuation . Foreign Total .
Capital Capital ~ Retained  Treasury Total difference on Deferred gains currency Remeasurements -y ot oher oM™ Total
stock surplus  earnings shares 5ha§$&gers ava\\szké{i}{g;sa\e or losses on ;ﬁ}ﬂ:lt?rt\fr?t bgrfwgf?tﬂglg(:\s com&gh;gswe c?;g?;!?sg net assets
Balance at the beginning of
current period ¥6,455  ¥3,540 ¥100,296 ¥(1,158) ¥109,133 ¥10,535 ¥(63) ¥4,779 ¥1,405  ¥16,657 ¥6,201 ¥131,992
Changes of items during the period
Dividends of surplus (4,029) (4,029) (4,029)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 15,602 15,602 15,602
Purchase of treasury shares (2,201) (2,201) (2,201)
Disposal of treasury shares 79 390 470 470
Cancellation of treasury shares - -
Purchase of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries - -
Sale of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries - -
Net changes of items other than
shareholders' equity 3,837 5 2,977 1,576 8,397 1,330 9,727
Total changes of items during the period - 79 11,572 (1,810 9,841 3,837 5 2,977 1,576 8,397 1,330 19,569
Balance at the end of current period  ¥6,455  ¥3,620 ¥111,869 ¥(2,969) ¥118,974 ¥14,373 ¥(57) ¥17,757 ¥2,981  ¥25,054  ¥7,532 ¥151,562
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Shareholders’ equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuation : Foreign Total
Capital Capital  Retained  Treasury Total | difference on Deferred gains currency Remeasurements -y et oher oM™ Total
stock surplus  earnings shares sharee(;lﬁ\gers ava\\saekéluer»i{g;sa\e or losses on ;ﬁ}ﬂ:lt?rr\fr?t bg;edf?tﬂgﬁis comi;r)]r;)hn?relswe C?Rg?e!ls‘lnsg net assets
Balance at the beginning of
current period $42,637  $23386 $662,462  §(7,653)  $720,832 $69,589 $(419) $31,569 $9,284 $110,023  $40961  $871,816
Changes of items during the period
Dividends of surplus (26,618) (26,618) (26,618)
Profit attributable to owners of parent 103,055 103,055 103,055
Purchase of treasury shares (14,542) (14,542) (14,542)
Disposal of treasury shares 525 2,581 3,106 3,106
Cancellation of treasury shares - -
Purchase of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries - -
Sale of shares of consolidated
subsidiaries - B
Net changes of items other than
shareholders' equity 25,346 37 19,668 10,412 55,463 8,791 64,254
Total changes of items during the period - 525 76,437 (11,961) 65,001 25,346 37 19,668 10,412 55,463 8791 129255
Balance at the end of current period ~ $42,637  $23911  $738899  §(19,614)  $785,833 $94,935 $(382) §51,237 $19,696 $165,486  $49,752 $1,001,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Taikisha Ltd. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before income taxes ¥12,557 ¥23,001 $151,924
Depreciation and amortization 2,000 1,469 9,706
Amortization of goodwill 462 484 3,197
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 315 484 3,199
Increase (decrease) in provision for warranties for completed construction (81) 49 330
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on construction contracts (103) 55 370
Increase (decrease) in provision for directors' retirement benefits " (16) (112)
Increase (decrease) in provision for share awards - 30 202
Increase (decrease) in provision for share awards for directors 67 58 385
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability (597) (782) (5,166)
Interest and dividend income (1,022) (1,578) (10,426)
Interest expenses 152 240 1,590
Share of (profit) loss of entities accounted for using equity method 3 (22) (145)
Loss (gain) on disposal of non-current assets 39 18 120
Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities (1,843) (3,167) (20,919)
Loss (gain) on valuation of investment securities 21 0 0
Loss (gain) on sale of shares of subsidiaries and associates (878) - -
Business restructuring expenses 2,461 - -
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable-trade (31,405) 1,159 7,659
Decrease (increase) in inventories (356) (10) (67)
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-other (17) 181 1,198
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable-trade 10,670 8,182 54,047
Increase (decrease) in advances received on uncompleted construction contracts 17,466 (10,381) (68,567)
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes 443 (437) (2,891)
Increase (decrease) in deposits received 529 (485) (3,210)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (84) 767 5,071
Other, net (310) 4,039 26,682
Subtotal 10,502 23,342 154,177
Interest and dividend income received 1,017 1,578 10,426
Interest expenses paid (152) (240) (1,590)
Income taxes paid (4,099) (3,941) (26,034)
Payments for business restructuring expenses (2,461) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,806 20,738 136,979
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments into time deposits (4,056) (7,956) (52,556)
Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits 4,293 9,996 66,024
Purchase of securities - (3,000) (19,815)
Proceeds from redemption of securities - 3,000 19,815
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (2,176) (3,885) (25,664)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 52 24 165
Purchase of investment securities (44) (1) (8)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 3,145 4,224 27,904
Payments for sale of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation (Note 7(2)) (2,270) - -
Payments of long-term loans receivable (183) (74) (490)
Collection of long-term loans receivable 50 195 1,292
Purchase of insurance funds (0) (0) (3)
Proceeds from maturity of insurance funds - 1 9
Purchase of long-term prepaid expenses (228) (474) (3,131)
Other, net (329) 98 651
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,748) 2,148 14,193
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable (134) 532 3,519
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 101 205 1,356
Repayments of long-term loans payable (201) (139) (918)
Repayments of lease obligations (102) (117) (777)
Net decrease (increase) in treasury shares (3,001) (1,731) (11,437)
Cash dividends paid (4,090) (4,030) (26,623)
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests (304) (264) (1,748)
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in change in scope of consolidation (2,087) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (9,822) (5,545) (36,628)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents 1,919 1,977 13,064
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,845) 19,319 127,608
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 48,791 43,946 290,265
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 7(1)) ¥43,946 ¥63,265 $417,873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taikisha Ltd. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024

1. Basis of presenting consolidated financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared based on the accounts maintained by Taikisha Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
consolidated subsidiaries (collectively, the “Companies”) in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different
in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled from the
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. Certain amounts
in the prior fiscal year's financial statements are reclassified to conform to the changes made for the latest fiscal year.

The accounts of the consolidated financial statements presented herein are expressed in Japanese yen by rounding down to the nearest million.
The U.S. dollar amounts shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto are translated from the original Japanese
yen into U.S. dollars on the basis of ¥151.40 to US$1, the rate of exchange prevailing at March 31, 2024, and are then rounded to the nearest
thousand. These U.S. dollar amounts are not intended to imply that the Japanese yen amounts are or can be converted, realized or settled in U.S.
dollars at this or any other rate.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(1) Scope of consolidation
During the consolidation fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, Taikisha Hungary Kft. has been included in the scope of consolidation because it is
newly established.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all significant subsidiaries listed below as of March 31, 2024:
Domestic subsidiaries
San Esu Industry Co., Ltd.
Nippon Noise Control Ltd.
Tokyo Taikisha Service Ltd.
Vege-factory Co., Ltd.
Overseas subsidiaries

TKS Industrial Company (the company name changed to Taikisha USA,
Inc. in April 2024)

Encore Automation LLC (subsidiary of TKS Industrial Company)
Taikisha Canada Inc. (subsidiary of TKS Industrial Company)

Taikisha de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (subsidiary of TKS Industrial Company)
Taikisha do Brasil Ltda.

Taikisha (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Taikisha (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Taikisha Trading (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Taikisha (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.)

Thaiken Maintenance & Service Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Taikisha
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.)

Token Interior & Design Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Taikisha (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd.)

TKA Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Taikisha (Thailand) Co., Ltd.)

Token Myanmar Co., Ltd. (subsidiary of Taikisha (Thailand) Co., Ltd.)
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Taikisha Engineering (M) Sdn. Bhd.

P.T. Taikisha Indonesia Engineering

P.T. Taikisha Manufacturing Indonesia
Taikisha Philippines Inc.

Taikisha Vietnam Engineering Inc.
Taikisha (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

Taikisha Myanmar Co., Ltd.

Taikisha Lao Co., Ltd.

Wuzhou Taikisha Engineering Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Taikisha Paint Finishing System Ltd.
Taikisha Hong Kong Limited

Taikisha (Taiwan) Ltd.

Taikisha Korea Ltd.

Taikisha Engineering India Private Ltd.
Nicomac Taikisha Clean Rooms Private Limited
Taikisha Hungary Kft.

(2) Application of the equity method
Name of associates subject to the equity method
FreDelish Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Dongchun-Taiki Metal Finishing & Conveyor System Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Name of associates not subject to the equity method
The associate not subject to the equity method is excluded from the scope of application of the equity method because even if it is excluded from the
scope of application of the equity method, it has minor impact on net income (proportionate to equity holdings), retained earnings (proportionate to
equity holdings), etc., in the consolidated financial statements.
Makiansia Engineering (M) Sdn. Bhd.

(3) Fiscal year for consolidated subsidiaries
The balance sheet date of all domestic consolidated subsidiaries as well as Taikisha Engineering India Private Ltd., Nicomac Taikisha Clean Rooms
Private Limited, Taikisha Myanmar Co., Ltd., and Token Myanmar Co., Ltd is March 31, which is the same as that of the Company. The balance
sheet date of the other overseas consolidated subsidiaries is December 31.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, for consolidated subsidiaries whose balance sheet date is December 31, the Company
uses each subsidiary's financial statements as of December 31. For Token Myanmar Co., Ltd., the Company uses provisional financial results as of
December 31, which is the balance sheet date of its parent company, Taikisha (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

For the subsidiaries with the balance sheet date of December 31, certain adjustments are made, where appropriate, in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to reflect material transactions during the period from their fiscal year end to March 31.

(4) Valuation of significant assets

Held-to-maturity debt securities
Held-to-maturity debt securities are determined by the amortized cost method. Discounts and premiums are amortized by the straight-line
method.

Shares of associates
Shares of associates are stated at cost, determined by the moving average method.

Available-for-sale securities
Available-for-sale securities with fair value are stated at fair value based on the market prices at the end of fiscal year. Valuation difference is
reported as a separate item in net assets at net-of-tax amount. The cost of securities sold is stated at cost, determined by the moving average
method.

Available-for-sale securities without fair value are stated at cost using the moving average method.

Derivatives
Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities at their respective fair values at the date of contract, and gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognized in earnings in the corresponding fiscal period. If certain hedging criteria are met, such gains and
losses are deferred and accounted for as assets or liabilities.

Inventories
Costs on uncompleted construction contracts are stated at cost using specific identification method. Raw materials and supplies are stated at
cost determined by the moving average method. The cost method (the amounts stated in the balance sheets are calculated by writing down the
book value based on the decline in profitability) is used as a valuation standard.

(5) Depreciation method for principal depreciable assets

Property, plant and equipment (excluding leased assets)
The Companies mainly calculate depreciation by the declining-balance method, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings, excluding
facilities attached to buildings, acquired on or after April 1, 1998, and is applied to facilities attached to buildings and structures, acquired on or
after April 1, 2016. Certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries apply the straight-line method. The useful lives and residual values of depreciable
assets are estimated in accordance with the Corporate Tax Act.

Intangible assets (excluding leased assets)
Intangible assets are amortized by the straight-line method. However, computer software for internal use is amortized by the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of 5 years. Customer-related assets are amortized by the straight-line method over the effective period of 10 years.

Leased assets
Leased assets under finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee are depreciated by the straight-line method
over the lease period with a residual value of zero.
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(6) Standards of accounting for principal allowance and provisions

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In order to prepare for losses due to bad debts such as accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other, the allowance for
doubtful accounts is provided at the estimated amount of uncollectable debt. For receivables classified as “normal”, it is provided based on a
historical default ratio. For receivables classified as “doubtful” etc., it is provided based on individual assessment on the probability of collection.

Provision for warranties for completed construction
In order to prepare for the costs of repairs for damages related to completed construction work for which the Companies are responsible, the
provision is provided based on past warranty experience.

Provision for loss on construction contracts
In order to prepare for future losses related to the construction contracts in process, the provision is provided based on estimated amount which
will probably be incurred and which can be reasonably estimated.

Provision for directors’ bonuses
In order to prepare for directors’ bonuses, the provision is provided based on the estimated payment of the fiscal year.

Provision for directors’ retirement benefits
In order to prepare for directors' retirement benefits, domestic consolidated subsidiaries recognize the provision for accrued retirement benefits to
directors at 100 percent of the amount required by their internal policies for retirement benefits.

Provision for share awards
In order to prepare for shared-based remuneration to corporate officers upon their retirements, the estimated amount of provision for share-
based obligation as of the fiscal year end is provided based on the Corporate Officer Stock Benefit Rules.

Provision for share awards for directors
In order to prepare for share-based remuneration to executive directors upon their retirements, the estimated amount of provision for share-
based obligation as of the fiscal year end is provided based on the regulation of share-based remuneration for directors.

(7) Retirement and pension plans
(Method of attributing the projected benefit obligations to periods of service)
In calculating the retirement benefit obligations, the benefit formula basis is used to allocate the projected retirement benefits to the years of
service up to the end of the fiscal year.
(Actuarial differences)
Actuarial differences are amortized using the straight-line method over a certain period of time (10 years) within the average remaining service
period of employees from the following fiscal year of accrual.
(Prior service costs)
Prior service costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a certain period of time (10 years) within the average remaining service
period of employees from the fiscal year of accrual.
(Simplified method for small companies)
Certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries apply the simplified method to calculate net defined benefit liability and retirement benefit expenses,
where retirement benefit obligations are assumed to be equal to the benefits payable of the fiscal year.

(8) Revenue and cost recognition
The details of the main performance obligations in the major businesses related to revenue from contracts with the Taikisha Group's customers and
the timing at which the Company typically satisfies these performance obligations (when it typically recognizes revenue) are as follows.

Construction contracts, and so on
In the Green Technology System business and the Paint Finishing System business, performance obligations for construction contracts, etc.
mainly involving design, supervision, and installation are deemed to be satisfied over time, and revenue is recognized based on progress toward
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation.
The progress of satisfaction of performance obligations in revenue recognition over time is measured by the ratio of incurred costs to
estimated total costs (input methods). In addition, revenue is recognized by cost recovery method in case incurred costs are expected to be
recoverable though the progress of satisfaction of performance obligations cannot be reasonably measured.

Sales of equipment and materials
In the Green Technology System business and the Paint Finishing system business, performance obligations for sales of equipment and materials
are deemed to be satisfied at a point in time, and revenue is recognized when products are delivered.

(9) Hedge accounting
Method of hedge accounting
Hedging instruments are valued at fair value and accounted for using the deferral method of accounting.

As permitted under the accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, when forward foreign exchange contracts meet certain conditions
for hedge accounting, accounts receivable and payable covered by these contracts are translated using the contract rates of these forward foreign
exchange contracts. The unrealized gains or losses on the accounts receivable and payable resulting from the difference between the spot foreign
exchange rate and contract rate are deferred and amortized over the term of the contract.
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Hedging instruments and hedged items
Hedging instruments: Forward exchange contracts, non-deliverable forwards (NDF),
Hedged items: Foreign currency receivables, foreign currency payables, future transactions in foreign currency
Hedging policy
The Companies use forward exchange contracts not for the purpose of speculation but for hedging future risks of fluctuation of foreign currency
exchange rates.
Assessment of hedge effectiveness
As forward exchange contracts in the same currency are used for forward exchange transactions, the correlation to subsequent exchange rate
fluctuations is completely ensured. Accordingly, evaluation of hedge effectiveness is omitted.

(10) Scope of cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash in hand, bank deposits able to be withdrawn on
demand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which are easily convertible into cash and represent a
minor risk of fluctuation in value.

(11) Amortization method and period for goodwill
Goodwill is amortized by the straight-line method over the effective period within 20 years. However, an immaterial goodwill is recognized as
expenses in the fiscal year of accrual.

(12) Significant accounting estimates
Estimates of percentage of completion in construction contracts, etc. in which revenue is recognized over time
(1) Amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Net sales of completed construction contracts ¥189,094 ¥271,781 $1,795,123

(2) Contents of the significant accounting estimates
In the Taikisha Group, of the construction contracts as of the consolidated fiscal year-end, if the percentage of completion can be reasonably
estimated for specific construction contracts, etc. in which revenue is recognized over time, revenue is recorded according to the said percentage
of completion.

The percentage of completion is measured by the ratio of cost incurred as of the fiscal year-end to estimated total costs based on the working
budget for the construction contract (input methods).

Regarding the total estimated cost for the construction contract until its completion, as changes may occur in line with the progress, etc. of
the construction contract, the Taikisha Group shall continuously review the said estimates and assumptions.

The total estimated cost is calculated based on various types of information, including the details of the said construction contract, etc., the
specifications, and the actual cost incurred in similar contracts in the past, for each contract. In particular, regarding projects undertaken by the
Taikisha Group, specifications of the contract and details of the work are determined based on the customer’s requests, and the details of each
contract differ greatly from other contracts. If hindrances to the project’s progress that were not foreseen at the initial stage of the contract occur,
additional assessments and estimates may be required regarding the altered conditions and the extent of each component in the emergency
response.

In addition, the total estimated cost may increase due to factors such as soaring prices of equipment and materials as a result of global
circumstances.

As the predictions of such assumptions come with a high level of uncertainty depending on changes in each individual project’s conditions, if
there is an impact on the total estimated cost and as a result the actual figure differs greatly from the estimate, there may be a material impact
on the amount of future income on the consolidated financial statements.

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets
(1) Amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Goodwill ¥3,640 ¥3,528 $23,305
Customer-related assets ¥1,184 ¥1,146 $7,570

Taikisha Integrated Report 2024

86

92UBUIBA0D Ayjigeuieisns sa1691e41s ssauisng piemiod Aauinor s,eysiyjiel uo1PNPOJIU|

UOIJBWIOLUI [BIDUBULY PUB UOID3S B1eq



87

Financial Sections

(2) Contents of the significant accounting estimates

The Taikisha Group judges the necessity of the recognition and measurement of an impairment regarding goodwill and customer-related assets
as of the consolidated fiscal year-end by verifying whether there is indication of the impairment or not.

For performing the recognition and measurement of impairment, assumptions are set and implemented regarding future cash flows and
discount rate based on the business plan.

These assumptions are determined at the discretion of management based on the best estimates. However, as they may be affected by the
results of fluctuations of uncertain economic conditions in the future and so on, if they are necessary to be reviewed, there may be a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(13) Additional information

Introduction of the Board Benefit Trust (BBT)

The Company has introduced the “Board Benefit Trust (BBT)" as its performance-linked and share-based compensation plan (hereinafter referred to
as the “Plan”) for the Company's Board Members (excluding Outside Board Members) (hereinafter referred to as the “Board Members”), starting
from the second quarter, pursuant to the resolution of the 74th Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 27, 2019.

The Company, at its Board of Directors Meeting held on March 30, 2023, made a resolution to include its Corporate Officers (excluding domestic
non-residents, hereinafter referred to as “Board Members, etc.”) to stock benefit eligibility of the Plan by establishing “Share Benefit Regulations for
Corporate Officers” set April 1, 2023 as its issue date.

The purpose of the Plan is to promote the motivation of Board Members in contributing to the improvement of business performance and
corporate value over the medium to long term by making the linkage between their compensation and the Company's business performance and
shareholder value even clearer and having Board Members share not only the benefits from higher stock prices, but also the risk of a drop in stock
prices, with shareholders.

The gross method has been used for the accounting treatment under the Plan in accordance with “Practical Solution on Transactions of Delivering
the Company’s Own Stock to Employees, etc., through Trusts” (Practical Issues Task Force No. 30 of March 26, 2015).

(1) Overview of transactions

The Plan is a scheme whereby money contributed by the Company is used as financial resources to acquire the Company’s shares through a

trust (the trust established under the Plan shall be hereinafter referred to as the “Trust”), and the Company's shares and money in the amount

of monetary equivalence of the Company’s shares measured at fair value (hereinafter referred to as “the Company's Shares, etc.”) are provided
to Board Members, etc. through the Trust in accordance with the “Share Benefit Regulations for Directors” and “Share Benefit Regulations for

Corporate Officers” stipulated by the Company.

The time when the Company’s Shares, etc. are provided to Board Members, etc. shall be, in principle, the date of the retirement from the

Company.

(2) The Company's own shares remaining in the Trust

The Company recognizes its own shares remaining in the Trust as treasury shares under the category of net assets, using the carrying amount in

the Trust (excluding the amount of ancillary expenses). The carrying amount of such treasury shares is ¥398 million for the previous fiscal year

and ¥511 million (US$3,377 thousand) for the fiscal year, and the number of such shares is 120,700 for the previous fiscal year and 149,500 for
the fiscal year.
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3. Notes of consolidated balance sheets

(1) Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other, arising from contracts with

customers, such as accounts receivable and contract assets are as follows.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Notes receivable - trade ¥9,672 ¥5,518 $36,449
Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts 48,339 60,243 397,908
Contract assets ¥66,224 ¥59,596 $393,633
(2) The information of associates
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Investment securities ¥594 ¥645 $4,262
(3) Pledged assets
Assets pledged as collateral for loans payable of subsidiaries and associates
As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Liabilities covered
Pledged assets Book value by pledged assets
Cash and deposits ¥280 ¥189
Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures ¥6 ¥4

As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Liabilities covered Liabilities covered
Pledged assets Book value by pledged assets Book value by pledged assets
Cash and deposits ¥329 ¥225 $2,176 $1,492
Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures ¥12 y7 $85 $49
Assets pledged as collateral for security deposits at subsidiaries and associates
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Cash and deposits ¥60 ¥65 $435
Assets pledged as collateral for overdraft facilities of subsidiaries and associates
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Cash and deposits ¥19 ¥20 $136
(4) Guarantee obligations
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Tianjin Dongchun-Taiki Metal Finishing & Conveyor System v484 ¥305 $2,018

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
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(5) Commitment lines
For efficient procurement of the operating funds, the Company has lending commitment contracts with four dealing banks. Lending commitment
amounts are as follows:

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Total amount of lending commitment ¥5,000 ¥5,000 $33,025

Borrowing execution balance - - -

Net ¥5,000 ¥5,000 $33,025

(6) Endorsed notes

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Endorsed notes ¥20 ¥0 $4

(7) Outstanding notes receivable and notes payable which maturity dates are same date as balance sheet date
Notes receivable and notes payable are settled as of the date of bank clearing. However, as the balance sheet date of this fiscal year was a bank
holiday, the following notes are included in the balance as of this fiscal year end.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Notes receivable-trade Y- ¥17 $113

Electronically recorded monetary claims-operating - 183 1,215

Notes payable-trade - 797 5,269

Electronically recorded obligations-operating ¥— ¥4,909 $32,430

4. Notes of consolidated statements of income

(1) Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from completed construction contracts is not separately stated from revenue from contracts with customers and other revenue. The amount
of revenue from contracts with customers is stated in “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Revenue Recognition) (1) Breakdown of revenue
from contracts with customers”.

(2) Research and development expenses
Research and development expenses included in selling, general and administrative expenses are as follows.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
General and administrative expenses ¥1,149 ¥1,166 $7,703

(3) Gain on disposal of non-current assets

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Buildings and structures ¥0 Y- $—

Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures 17 13 88

Leasehold and guarantee deposits 0 - -

Total ¥18 ¥13 $88
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(4) Loss on disposal of non-current assets

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Buildings and structures ¥24 ¥4 $30
Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures 17 26 177
Land 15 - -
Software 0 0 1
Other 0 - -
Total ¥57 ¥31 $208

(5) Impairment loss
For the year ended March 31, 2023
In the consolidated fiscal year, the Group recognized impairment loss for the following asset groups.

(1) Overview of the asset of which recognized impairment loss

Millions of yen

Location Usage Classification of asset Impairment loss
Sugito Factory Business Asset Buildings and Machineries 588
Itabashi R&D Center Common Asset Buildings and Machineries 52
Head Office Common Asset Tools, Furniture and Fixtures 2

(2) Method and background of grouping of asset
The Group principally groups assets in the unit of companies or businesses. In addition, idle assets that are not expected to be used in future
are grouped in the unit of individual asset. The book value of fixed assets in Vege-factory Co., Ltd., which is the consolidated subsidiary,
has been written-down to the recoverable amount because the company no longer expects to generate the anticipated earnings due to
continuous negative earnings from operating activities, and the recoverability has declined, and this decline is recognized as impairment loss
in extraordinary losses.

(3) Details of impairment loss
Impairment loss consists of ¥363 million for buildings and structures and ¥279 million for machinery, vehicles, and tools, furniture and
fixtures.

(4) Calculation method of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount in measuring impairment loss is measured by value in use, which is calculated by discounting future cash flows at
5.53%.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Not applicable.

(6) Business restructuring expenses
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Expenses incurred for business structure improvements in Europe are recognized as business restructuring expenses in
extraordinary losses.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Not applicable.

(7) Provision for loss on construction contracts
Provision for loss on construction contracts included in cost of sales of completed construction contracts are as follows.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Provision for loss on construction contracts ¥151 ¥314 $2,076
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5. Notes of consolidated statements of comprehensive income 6. Notes of consolidated statements of changes in net assets

(1) Reclassification adjustments and tax effects for other comprehensive income (1) The number of issued shares

uo1PNPOJIU|

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 - Millions of yen - Thousand;gfztis_ dollars For the year ended March 31, 2023 Beginning Balance laEess Decrease Ending Balance
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities Common shares 35,082,009 - 1,500,000 33,582,009
Net gains (|OSSES) arising during the period ¥(26) ¥8,563 $56,565 (Note) The decrease was due to cancellation of 1,500,000 shares of treasury shares.
Redlassification adjustments (1,843) (3,167) (20,919) For the year ended March 31, 2024 Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
Before tax effects (1,870) 5,396 35,646 Common shares 33,582,009 ~ ~ 33,582,009
Tax effects 497 (1,559) (10,300)
Valgann difference on available-for-sale securities (1,372) 3,837 25,346 (2) The number of treasury shares
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Net gains (losses) arising during the period (55) 8 53 For the year ended March 31, 2023 Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
Reclassification adjustments - - - Common shares 998,559 882,130 1,500,000 380,689
Before tax effects (55) 8 53 (Note1) The number of treasury shares increased by 881,700 shares because of the approval of Board of directors and by 430 shares because of purchase of shares less than
one unit (*).
Tax effects . 17 (2) (1 6) The number decreased by 1,500,000 shares because of cancellation of treasury shares.
Deferred gains or losses on hEdQES (38) 5 37 (Note2) The number of treasury shares as of the fiscal year end includes 120,700 shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets of the Board
Foreign rren ran | ion i men Benefit Trust (BBT).
oreign cu e ¢y transiat O adJUSTf ent . (*) The unit share is a specified number of shares which are treated as one purchasing lot and entitled to one voting right. One unit share consists of 100 shares.
Net gains (losses) arising during the period 2,664 3,382 22,345
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2,664 3,382 22,345
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans For the year ended March 31, 2024 Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
Net gains (losses) arising during the period (466) 2,704 17,864 Common shares 380,689 507,735 129,300 759,124
Reclassification adJUSImems (320) (421) (2,785) (Note1) The number of treasury shares increased by 453,100 shares because of the approval of Board of directors, by 435 shares because of purchase of shares less than one
Before tax effects (787) 2,282 15,079 unit (*), and by 54,200 shares acquired by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) for Board Benefit Trust (BBT).
The number decreased by 103,900 shares because of disposal of treasury shares for Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) and by 25,400 shares because of
Tax effects 270 (699) (4'620) benefit for Board Benefit Trust (BBT).
Remeasurements of defined benefit p|an5 (516) 1,583 10,459 (Note2) |T3he nfngber czll;tBrTe)asury shares as of the fiscal year end includes 149,500 shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets of the Board
— — - - enefit Trust .
Share of other Compmhenswe income of entities accounted for using equrty method (*) The unit share is a specified number of shares which are treated as one purchasing lot and entitled to one voting right. One unit share consists of 100 shares.
Net gains (losses) arising during the period 29 28 190
Other comprehensive income ¥765 ¥8,838 $58,377 (3) Dividends
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Dividends paid

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount Amount per share Shir_ei}?l(?etrs’ Effective date
Resolution approved by Type of shares Millions of yen Yen Al
Annual general meeting of March 31, June 30,
shareholders (June 29, 2022) Common shares ¥2,394 ¥70.00 2022 2022
Board of directors September November
(November 10, 2022) Common shares ¥1,699 ¥50.00 30, 2022 30, 2022

(Note1) Dividends on June 29, 2022 includes dividends of ¥8 million for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets for Board Benefit
Trust (BBT).

(Note2) Dividends on November 10, 2022 includes dividends of ¥6 million for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets for Board
Benefit Trust (BBT).

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Amount Amount per share Shareholders'

T Effective date
. Mill f Thousands of u.s. -
Resolution approved by Type of shares ! ;225 0 U?gsgg”;z Yen dollars toff date
Annual general meeting of March 31, June 30,
shareholders (June 29, 2023) Common shares ¥2,365 $15,627 ¥71.00 $0.47 2023 203

Board of directors

September November
(November 13, 2023) Common shares ¥1,664 $10,991 ¥50.00 $0.33

30, 2023 30, 2023

(Note1) Dividends on June 29, 2023 includes dividends of ¥8 million (US$57 thousand) for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust
assets for Board Benefit Trust (BBT).

(Note2) Dividends on November 13, 2023 includes dividends of ¥7 million (US$49 thousand) for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust
assets for Board Benefit Trust (BBT).
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Dividends with a shareholders’ cut-off date during the fiscal year but an effective date subsequent to the fiscal year

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Amount Amount per share Shareholders' -
Type of cut-off date Effective date
Resolution approved by chares Paid from Millions of yen Yen
Annual general .
. Common  Retained March 31, June 30,
meeting of shareholders shares  earnings ¥2,365 ¥71.00 2023 2023

(June 29, 2023)

(Note) Dividends total includes dividends of ¥8 million for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets for Board Benefit Trust (BBT).

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount Amount per share Shareholders' Effective date
Resolution approved by Type of Paid from Millions of - Thousands of Yen u.s. cut-off date
shares yen U.S. dollars dollars
Annual general meeting of Common  Retained March 31, June 28,
shareholders (June 27, 2024) shares  earnings ¥2,670  $17,640 ¥81.00  $0.54 2024 2024

(Note) Dividends total includes dividends of ¥12 million (US$80 thousand) for treasury shares owned by Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust E account) as trust assets for Board
Benefit Trust (BBT).

7. Notes of consolidated statements of cash flows

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
The reconciliation between amounts of cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows and amounts of cash and
deposits reported in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Cash and deposits ¥46,988 ¥55,462 $366,333

Securities - 9,000 59,445

Sub total 46,988 64,462 425,778

Time deposits over three months (3,042) (1,196) (7,905)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥43,946 ¥63,265 $417,873

(2) Details of assets and liabilities of the company which is included in the scope of consolidation because of sale of
shares

For the year ended March 31, 2023
Assets and liabilities at the time of the sale of shares of Geico S.p.A., which was excluded from the scope of consolidation are

as follows.
Millions of yen
Current assets ¥18,575
Non-current assets 3,812
Total assets 22,388
Current liabilities 18,605
Non-current liabilities 5,690
Total liabilities ¥24,295

In addition, minus 2,248 million yen, which is calculated by cash and cash equivalents acquired through the sale subtracted
by cash and cash equivalents included in the above current assets, are included in “Payments for sale of shares of subsidiaries
resulting in change in scope of consolidation”.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Not applicable.
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(3) Details of major non-cash transactions
Not applicable.

8. Lease transaction

(1) Finance lease transaction
As lessee

Details of leased assets
The leased assets are mainly production equipment and vehicles in Japan and office, office equipment and vehicles overseas. The account
titles which the Companies use are “Buildings and Structures” and “Machinery, vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures” respectively.

Depreciation method
Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method over the lease period with a residual value of zero.

Impairment loss
There is no impairment loss allocated to the leased assets.

(2) Operating lease transaction

As lessee
The amounts of outstanding future lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Due within one year ¥355 ¥438 $2,893
Due over one year 960 984 6,500
Total ¥1,315 ¥1,422 $9,393

9. Financial instruments

(1) Status of financial instruments

Policies on financial instruments
The Companies invest its temporary surplus funds in financial assets that are highly secure and procure its short-term working capital in the form
of borrowings from banks. The Companies utilize derivatives only to hedge their exposure to the risks as described below and do not enter into
such transactions for speculative purposes.

Description of financial instruments, related risks and risk management system
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other, which are trade receivables, are exposed to the credit risk
of the respective customers. As for the credit risk of customers, the Companies’ management system allows us to monitor the credit standing of
major customers on a timely basis based on the maturity and balance control by customer. Meanwhile, trade receivables denominated in foreign
currencies, which originate from global business operations, are exposed to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations and are partly hedged by utilizing
forward exchange contracts.

Although being exposed to the risk of fluctuations in market price, stocks included in the category of investment securities are those of
companies with which the Companies have business relations and are continuously monitored through regular checks of their fair value and
financial positions of the issuers.

Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts and other, which are trade payables, generally mature within one year. While some
of them are denominated in foreign currencies for the purpose of importing equipment and raw materials, etc. and are exposed to the risk of
exchange rate fluctuations, the amounts of those items are invariably less than the balance of accounts receivable from completed construction
contracts, which are similarly denominated in foreign currencies.

Income taxes payable are imposed on the taxable income of the Companies for the fiscal year, and they all mature within one year.

Both short-term and long-term loans payable are fund-raising means associated with business transactions. Short-term loans payable with
variable interest rates are exposed to the risk of interest-rate fluctuations. However, long-term loans payable, which are procured at fixed interest
rates, in principle, are hedged against interest-rate fluctuation risk.

Derivative transactions consist of forward exchange contracts and NDFs aimed at hedging the risk of fluctuations in exchange rates for exports
and imports in the course of ordinary business operations, as well as interest rate swaps aimed at hedging the risk of fluctuations in the interest
rates for loans payable. Forward exchange contracts and NDFs are executed and managed in accordance with the relevant guideline regarding
foreign exchange control issued by the Chief Executive of the Administrative Management Headquarters. This guideline clearly stipulates regulations
for the management policies on derivative transactions, the requlating division and department in charge of risk management, purposes of use,
scope of utilization and reporting system. As for interest rate swaps, only those that meet the requirements for the application of special treatment
are executed. Derivative transactions are executed only with financial institutions with high credit ratings to reduce the credit risk.

Although trade payables and loans payable are exposed to liquidity risk, the Companies strive to control the liquidity risk such as by having
each Group company prepare a monthly cash management plan.
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Supplementary explanation of fair values of financial instruments
Derivative transactions in “(2) Fair value of financial instruments” below are not indicative of the actual market risk involved in derivative
transactions but nominal contract amounts or estimated amounts based on certain assumptions.

(2) Fair value of financial instruments

The following table shows the book values and fair values of financial instruments and any differences.

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Book value Fair value Difference
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and
other ¥124,236
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*2) (205)
124,030 123,966 (63)
Investment securities (*3) 25,436 25,436 -
Total Assets 149,466 149,402 (63)
Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts and other 55,472 55,458 (14)
Short-term loans payable 2,942 2,942 -
Long-term loans payable 98 98 (0)
Total Liabilities 58,513 58,498 (14)
Derivatives ¥(95) ¥(95) ¥—

(*1) Cash and deposits and income taxes payable are not stated because they are settled in a short period of time and their fair value approximates their book value.
(*2) "Allowance for doubtful accounts” separately included in “notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other” is deducted.

(*3) Stocks and other securities without market prices are not included (see Note 1 below).

As of March 31, 2024

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Fairvalue  Difference Book value Fair value Difference
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from
completed construction contracts and other $827,990
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*2) (5,092)
124,414 (172) 822,898 821,761 (1,137)

Investment securities (*3) 38,776 - 256,122 256,122 -
Total Assets 163,191 (172) 1,079,020 1,077,883 (1,137)
Notes payable, accounts payable for
construction contracts and other 64,841 (26) 428,452 428,277 (175)
Short-term loans payable 3,747 - 24,754 24,754 -
Long-term loans payable 143 (0) 948 948 (0)
Total Liabilities 68,732 (26) 454,154 453,979 (175)
Derivatives ¥(90) ¥ $(598) $(598) $-

(*1) Cash and deposits and income taxes payable are not stated because they are settled in a short period of time and their fair value approximates their book value.
(*2) "Allowance for doubtful accounts” separately included in “notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other” is deducted.

(*3) Stocks and other securities without market prices are not included (see Note 1 below).

(Note 1)

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Available-for-sale securities
Non-listed stocks ¥1,046 ¥1,097 $7,249
Non-listed foreign bonds ¥4 ¥5 $35
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(Note 2) Redemption schedule for monetary receivables and securities with maturities

As of March 31, 2023

Millions of yen

Within one year

Over one year Over five years

within five years  within ten years L el e

Cash and deposits ¥46,988 ¥— ¥— ¥—
Notes recelvgble, accounts receivable from completed 112,686 11,503 16 3
construction contracts and other
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with maturity date B A B 3
(Non-listed foreign bonds)
Total ¥159,675 ¥11,507 ¥46 ¥—
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen

Within one year

Over one year Over five years

within five years  within ten years Ot st

Cash and deposits

Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed
construction contracts and other

Securities and Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with maturity date
(Money trusts, etc.)

Available-for-sale securities with maturity date
(Non-listed foreign bonds)

¥55,462
115,597

9,000

¥— ¥— ¥—
9,618 141 =

5 - -

Total

¥180,060

¥9,624 ¥141 ¥—

As of March 31, 2024

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Within one year

Over one year Over five years

within five years  within ten years Over ten years

Cash and deposits

Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed
construction contracts and other

Securities and Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with maturity date
(Money trusts, etc.)

Available-for-sale securities with maturity date
(Non-listed foreign bonds)

$366,333
763,525

59,445

$- $- $-
63,533 932 =

35 = =

Total

$1,189,303

$63,568 $932 $-

Taikisha Integrated Report 2024

96

92UBUIBA0D Ayjigeuieisns sa1691e41s ssauisng piemiod Aauinor s,eysiyjiel uo1PNPOJIU|

UOIJBWIOLUI [BIDUBULY PUB UOID3S B1eq



97

Financial Sections

(Note 3) Redemption schedule for long-term loans payable, lease obligations and other interest-bearing debts

As of March 31, 2023

Millions of yen

. Over one year ~ Over two years  Over three years  Over four years :
Within one year within twoyyears within threg years  within fouriears within fiveyyears Over five years
Short-term loans payable ¥2,836 Y- ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥—
Long-term loans payable 106 62 36 - - -
Lease obligations 69 55 22 10 7 1
Total ¥3,012 ¥117 ¥58 ¥10 ¥7 ¥1
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
. Over one year ~ Over two years  Over three years  Over four years :
Within one year within two years  within three years within four years  within five years Over five years
Short-term loans payable ¥3,619 ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥
Long-term loans payable 127 101 41 0 - -
Lease obligations 100 75 36 26 9 0
Total ¥3,848 ¥177 ¥78 ¥27 ¥9 ¥0
As of March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
e Over one year Over two years  Over three years ~ Over four years !
Within one year within two years within three years within four years  within five years Over five years
Short-term loans payable $23,909 $— $— $— $— $—
Long-term loans payable 845 672 276 0 - -
Lease obligations 666 498 241 178 63 3
Total $25,420 $1,170 $517 $178 $63 $3
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(3) Breakdown of the fair value of financial instruments by level, and so on

The fair values of financial instruments are classified into the following three levels based on the observability and materiality of the inputs used
to measure fair value.

Level 1: Fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets with respect to identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Fair values measured using inputs not based on observable market data

If multiple inputs that have significant impacts on the measurement of fair value are used, fair values are classified to the level with the
lowest priority in the measurement of fair value among the levels to which each of those inputs belongs.

Financial instruments recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Stocks ¥25,436 ¥— ¥— ¥25,436
Total Assets 25,436 - - 25,436
Derivative transactions ¥— ¥(95) ¥— ¥(95)
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Stocks ¥29,776 ¥— ¥ ¥29,776
Total Assets 29,776 - - 29,776
Derivative transactions ¥ ¥(90) ¥ ¥(90)
As of March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities
Available-for-sale securities
Stocks $196,677 $— $- $196,677
Total Assets 196,677 - - 196,677
Derivative transactions $— $(598) $— $(598)
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Financial instruments other than financial instruments recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed v ¥123,966 v ¥123,966
construction contracts and other
Total Assets - 123,966 - 123,966
Notgtshr;?yable, accounts payable for construction contracts and 3 55,458 B 55,458
Short-term loans payable - 2,942 - 2,942
Long-term loans payable - 928 - 98
Total Liabilities ¥— ¥58,498 ¥— ¥58,498
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed
construction contracts and other o ¥124,414 o ¥124,414
Securities and Investment securities
Money trusts = 9,000 = 9,000
Total Assets - 133,414 - 133,414
Notsfhpé?yable, accounts payable for construction contracts and B 64,841 _ 64,841
Short-term loans payable - 3,747 - 3,747
Long-term loans payable - 143 - 143
Total Liabilities y— ¥68,732 ¥y ¥68,732
As of March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed
construction contracts and other 5= §821,761 5= §821,761
Securities and Investment securities
Money trusts - 59,445 - 59,445
Total Assets - 881,206 - 881,206
Notgtshp;?yable, accounts payable for construction contracts and B 428,277 _ 428,277
Short-term loans payable - 24,754 - 24,754
Long-term loans payable - 948 - 948
Total Liabilities $— $453,979 $— $453,979
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(Note) Explanation of valuation method used in the measurement of fair value and inputs related to the measurement of fair value

Assets

Notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other
These fair values are classified into level 2 because these fair values are calculated based on the discount rate that takes into account the
period until these maturities and credit risks for each receivables classified by a certain period of time.

Securities and investment securities
These fair values of these listed stocks are evaluated using quoted market prices. These fair values are classified into level 1 because these
listed stocks are treated in active markets. In addition, money trusts are classified into level 2 because they are settled in a short period of
time and their fair value approximates their book value.

Liabilities

Notes payable, accounts payable for construction contracts and other and short-term loans payable
These fair values of these payables or loans are classified into level 2 because these fair values are calculated by discounting by the discount
rate that takes into account the period until these payment or repayment and interest rate that takes credit risk into account.

Long-term loans payable
Fair values of long-term loans with floating interest rates are classified into level 2 because these fair values are deemed to approximate the
book values and the floating interest rates reflect the market interest rates and these credit statuses are not significantly different from those
when the loans are executed. Fair values of long-term loans with fixed interest rates are classified into level 2 because the total amount of
principal and interest of the long-term loans divided by a certain period of time are calculated fair value by discounting by the interest rate
assumed when a new similar loans are executed.

Derivative transactions

These fair values are classified into level 2 because these fair values are based on the prices provided by the financial institutions with which
the Company has transactions.
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10. Securities

(1) Held-to-maturity debt securities

As of March 31, 2023
Not applicable.

As of March 31, 2024
Not applicable.

(2) Available-for-sale securities

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Stocks ¥22,541 ¥7,227 ¥15,313
Securities whose book value does not exceed their acquisition cost
Stocks 2,894 3,034 (140)
Total ¥25,436 ¥10,262 ¥15,173
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Stocks ¥29,776 ¥9,206 ¥20,570
Securities whose book value does not exceed their acquisition cost
Money trusts 9,000 9,000 =
Total ¥38,776 ¥18,206 ¥20,570
As of March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Stocks $196,677 $60,808 $135,869
Securities whose book value does not exceed their acquisition cost
Money trusts 59,445 59,445 -
Total $256,122 $120,253 $135,869
(3) Available-for-sale securities sold
For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen

Sales amount

Total gain on sales Total loss on sales

Stocks ¥3,145 ¥1,844 ¥0
Total ¥3,145 ¥1,844 ¥0
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Sales amount Total gain on sales Total loss on sales
Stocks ¥4,224 ¥3,167 ¥—
Total ¥4,224 ¥3,167 ¥—

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Sales amount

Total gain on sales Total loss on sales

Stocks

$27,904

$20,919 $-

Total

$27,904

$20,919 $-
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(4) Securities with impairment loss
For the years ended March 31, 2023

Impairment loss of ¥21 million is recognized on Investment securities (Available-for-sale of securities) in the fiscal year. The Companies recognize
an impairment loss when the fair value of stocks falls 50% or more compared with the acquisition cost and there is no evidence to indicate that
the fair value will recover to the book value within one year. When the fair value falls by 30% or more but less than 50% compared with the
acquisition cost, the Companies recognize a necessary amount of impairment loss after considering the market prices in the past year and the

possibility of recovery.

For the years ended March 31, 2024

Impairment loss of ¥0 million (US$0 thousand) is recognized on Investment securities (Available-for-sale of securities) in the fiscal year. The
Companies recognize an impairment loss when the fair value of stocks falls 50% or more compared with the acquisition cost and there is no
evidence to indicate that the fair value will recover to the book value within one year. When the fair value falls by 30% or more but less than
50% compared with the acquisition cost, the Companies recognize a necessary amount of impairment loss after considering the market prices in

the past year and the possibility of recovery.

11. Derivative transactions

(1) Derivative transactions to which the hedge accounting method is not applied

Currency-related transactions

As of March 31, 2023

Millions of yen

Unrealized gain

Category Transaction type Contract amount  Over one year Fair value (loss)
Non-market transactions Forward exchange contracts:
Buy
Yen ¥149 ¥— ¥(3) ¥(3)
U.S. dollars 1 - (0) (0)
Chinese Yuan 1 - (0) (0)
Sell
Yen 9 - (0) (0)
U.S. dollars 12 - (0) (0)
Total ¥173 ¥— ¥(3) ¥(3)
(Note) Estimated fair value is provided by financial institutions.
As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Category Transaction type Contract amount ~ Over one year Fair value Unrevﬁllgz;eg gam
Non-market transactions Forward exchange contracts:
Buy
Yen ¥138 Y= ¥(5) ¥(5)
U.S. dollars 18 - (0) (0)
Chinese Yuan 108 - () (1)
Sell
U.S. dollars 31 - 0 0
Total ¥297 ¥— ¥(7) ¥(7)

(Note) Estimated fair value is provided by financial institutions.

As of March 31, 2024

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Category Transaction type Contract amount  Over one year Fair value Unre?:(i)zses? gain
Non-market transactions Forward exchange contracts:
Buy
Yen $916 $- $(39) $(38)
U.S. dollars 125 - (1) (1)
Chinese Yuan 714 - (13) (13)
Sell
U.S. dollars 209 - 5 5
Total $1,964 $- $(48) $(47)
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(2) Derivative transactions to which the hedge accounting method is applied
Currency-related transactions

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen

Hedging method Transaction type  Main hedged items Contract amount Over one year  Fair value

Method in Forward exchange contracts

principle Buy
Baht Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) ¥86 ¥— ¥2
Euros Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) 182 - 5
Chinese Yuan Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) 30 - 0)
Taiwan dollars Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) 150 - (7)

Sell
U.S. dollars  Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 67 - (2)
Euros Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 70 - (7)
Malaysia ringgit Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 1,539 114 (73)
Chinese Yuan Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 504 176 (3)
Indian rupee  Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 60 - (2)
Total ¥2,691 ¥290 ¥(91)

(Note) Calculation method of the fair value: Based on the prices and other data submitted by counterparty financial institutions.

As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen

Hedging method Transaction type  Main hedged items Contract amount  Over one year  Fair value

Method in Forward exchange contracts
principle Buy

Chinese Yuan Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) ¥584 ¥ ¥8

Sell
Euros Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 474 236 (16)
Malaysia ringgit Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 381 114 (58)
Chinese Yuan Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 415 59 (16)
Total ¥1,855 ¥410 ¥(83)

(Note) Calculation method of the fair value: Based on the prices and other data submitted by counterparty financial institutions.

As of March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Hedging method Transaction type  Main hedged items Contract amount  Over one year  Fair value

Method in Forward exchange contracts

principle Buy
Chinese Yuan Accounts payable for construction contracts (forecast) $3,859 $— $58
Sell
Euros Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 3,132 1,565 (108)
Malaysia ringgit Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 2,518 754 (390)
Chinese Yuan Accounts receivable from completed construction contracts (forecast) 2,745 394 (110)
Total $12,254 $2,713 $(550)
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12. Retirement and pension plans

(1) Overview
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries apply defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans.
The overseas consolidated subsidiaries, which apply retirement benefit plan, apply defined benefit or defined contribution plans.
The defined benefit plans consist of outside funded defined benefit pension plans and lump-sum retirement payment plans. A retirement benefit
trust is set up in certain outside funded defined benefit pension plan.
Certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries, which apply lump-sum retirement payment plans, apply simplified method for calculating projected
benefit obligations.

(2) Defined benefit plan (except simplified method)

Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances for projected benefit obligations

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Projected benefit obligations at the beginning of current period ¥17,847 ¥18,003 $118,911
Service costs 1,232 1,251 8,268
Interest costs 60 94 622
Actuarial differences accrued in the current period (258) 917) (6,061)
Benefits paid (977) (1,096) (7,245)
Past service costs accrued in the current period M (124) (822)
Foreign currency translation 118 109 721
Decrease due to exclusion of consolidation (18) - -

Projected benefit obligations at the end of current period ¥18,003 ¥17,319 $114,394

Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances for pension assets

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Pension assets at the beginning of current period ¥25,495 ¥25,339 $167,369
Expected return on pension assets 539 538 3,555
Actuarial differences accrued in the current period (732) 1,662 10,978
Contributions from employers 891 1,051 6,947
Benefits paid (869) (992) (6,555)
Foreign currency translation 15 20 136

Pension assets at the end of current period ¥25,339 ¥27,619 $182,430

Reconciliation of projected benefit obligations, pension assets, net defined benefit liability, and net defined
benefit asset in the consolidated balance sheets

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Funded projected benefit obligations ¥16,745 ¥16,284 $107,562

Pension assets (25,339) (27,619) (182,430)
Sub total (8,594) (11,334) (74,868)

Unfunded projected benefit obligations 1,258 1,034 6,832

Net amount of liabilities and assets in the consolidated balance sheets (7,336) (10,300) (68,036)

Net defined benefit liability 1,258 1,277 8,441

Net defined benefit asset 8,594 11,578 76,477

Net amount of liabilities and assets in the consolidated balance sheets ¥(7,336) ¥(10,300) $(68,036)
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Retirement benefit expenses

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Service costs ¥1,232 ¥1,251 $8,267
Interest costs 60 94 622
Expected return on pension assets (539) (538) (3,555)
Amortization of actuarial differences (329) (443) (2,931)
Amortization of past service costs 2 (0) (5)
Retirement benefit expenses of defined benefit plans ¥426 ¥363 $2,398

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of remeasurements of defined benefit plans before tax effect adjustments are as follows.

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Past service costs ¥(5) ¥118 $780

Actuarial differences (781) 2,164 14,299

Total ¥(787) ¥2,282 $15,079

Accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Details of accumulated remeasurements of defined benefit plans before tax effect adjustments are as follows.

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Unrecognized past service costs ¥(73) Y44 $297
Unrecognized actuarial differences 2,082 4,247 28,056
Total ¥2,009 ¥4,292 $28,353
Pension assets
Composition ratio of pension assets is as follows.
As of March 31, 2023 and 2024
2023 2024
Debt securities 25% 24%
Stocks 37 42
Cash and deposits 5 4
General account of life insurance 23 21
Other 10 9
Total 100% 100%

(Note) For the previous fiscal year, 15% of total pension assets are attributed to the employee retirement benefit trust for benefit pension plan. For this fiscal year, 14% of total
p Y p ploy p p y

pension assets are attributed to the employee retirement benefit trust for benefit pension plan.

Expected long-term return rate on pension asset is determined by considering current and anticipated future portfolio of pension assets, and current

and anticipated future long-term performance of individual asset classes that comprise the funds” asset mix.
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Assumptions and policies used to calculate projected benefit obligations

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024

2023 2024
Discount rates (weighted average) 0.5% 1.1%
Expected long-term return rates on pension assets (weighted average) 2.5% 2.5%

(3) Defined benefit plan calculated by simplified method

Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances for net defined benefit liability by the simplified method

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Net defined benefit liability at the beginning of current period ¥200 ¥83 $553
Retirement benefit expenses 20 23 156
Benefits paid (2) - -
Contributions to the plan (24) (14) (95)
Foreign currency translation 9 3 22
Decrease due to exclusion of consolidation (120) - -

Net defined benefit liability at the end of current period ¥83 ¥96 $636

Reconciliation of projected benefit obligations, pension assets and net defined benefit liability in the

consolidated balance sheets

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024

Funded projected benefit obligations ¥84 ¥104 $688
Pension assets (86) (107) (712)

Sub total (1) 3) (24)
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 85 99 660
Net amount of liabilities and assets in the consolidated balance sheets 83 96 636
Net defined benefit liability 83 9 636
Net amount of liabilities and assets in the consolidated balance sheets ¥83 ¥96 $636

Retirement benefit expenses

Retirement benefit expenses calculated by the simplified method are ¥20 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥23 million (US$156 thousand) for

this fiscal year.

(4) Defined contribution plans

Required contribution amount for defined contribution plans is ¥270 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥292 million (US$1,931 thousand) for

this fiscal year.
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13. Tax effect accounting

(1) Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2023 2024 2024
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥241 ¥301 $1,989
Provision for warranties for completed construction 123 150 991
Provision for loss on construction contracts 97 119 787
Net defined benefit liability 213 224 1,484
Employees’ pension trust, investment securities 352 368 2,435
Provision for directors’ retirement benefits 19 13 91
Accrued enterprise tax etc. 129 268 1,771
Accrued bonuses 1,540 2,435 16,089
Loss on valuation of investment securities 365 110 730
Loss on valuation of golf club membership 56 56 373
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 42 - -
Foreign tax credit carried forward 210 224 1,485
Tax loss carried forward (Note2) 899 686 4,535
Other 1,217 1,469 9,704
Subtotal 5,510 6,429 42,464
Valuation allowance for tax loss carried forward (Note2) (856) (667) (4,406)
Valuation allowance for total of deductible temporary differences, etc. (1,083) (1,051) (6,948)
Subtotal (Note1) (1,939) (1,719) (11,354)
Total deferred tax assets 3,570 4,710 31,110
Deferred tax liabilities
Net defined benefit assets (2,618) (3,528) (23,306)
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (4,680) (6,197) (40,934)
Retained earnings of consolidated overseas subsidiaries (2,141) (2,479) (16,377)
Other (580) (711) (4,697)
Total deferred tax liabilities (10,021) (12,916) (85,314)
Net deferred tax assets liabilities ¥(6,451) ¥(8,206) $(54,204)

(Note1) Valuation allowance decreased by ¥220 million (US$1,459 thousand). This decreased is mainly due to ¥225 million (US$1,492 thousand) decrease in the valuation

allowance for tax loss carried forward at consolidated subsidiary TKS Industrial Company.
(Note2) Total of tax loss carried forward and its deferred tax assets, by carryforward expiration date.

As of March 31, 2023 Millions of yen

Over one year  Qver two years  Over three years — Over four years

Within one year within two years within three years within four years _within five years Over five years Total
Tax loss carried forward (a) ¥32 ¥8 ¥4 ¥— Y- ¥854 ¥899
Valuation allowance (9) (7) (4) - - (835) (856)
Deferred tax assets ¥23 ¥1 ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥18 ¥43

(a) The sum for tax loss carried forward is the result of multiplication by the effective statutory tax rate for each tax-paying entity.
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As of March 31, 2024

Millions of yen

Over one year  Over two years  Over three years ~ Over four years

Within one year within two years within three years within four years within five years Over five years Total
Tax loss carried forward (a) ¥9 ¥12 ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥664 ¥686
Valuation allowance (7) (5) - - - (654) (667)
Deferred tax assets ¥2 ¥6 ¥ ¥— ¥ ¥10 ¥19
(a) The sum for tax loss carried forward is the result of multiplication by the effective statutory tax rate for each tax-paying entity.

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Within one year Over one year  Over two years  Over three years ~ Over four years Over five years Total
within two years within three years within four years within five years

Tax loss carried forward $66 $80 $— $- $- $4,388 $4,534
Valuation allowance (51) (35) = = = (4,320) (4,400)
Deferred tax assets $15 $45 $— $- $- $68 $128

(2) The reconciliation between the effective statutory tax rate and the actual tax rate after the application of tax effect accounting

As of March 31, 2023 and 2024

2023 2024

Effective statutory tax rate —% 30.62%
Adjustment

Expenses not deductible permanently - 1.20
Income not taxable permanently - (0.73)
Inhabitant tax on per capita basis, etc. - 0.36
Increase (Decrease) in valuation allowance - (1.35)
Difference in effective statutory tax rate between the Company and consolidated subsidiaries - (2.38)
Special tax deductions - (3.84)
Retained earnings of consolidated overseas subsidiaries - 1.47
Withholding tax on dividends from overseas related companies - 0.89
Amortization of goodwill - 0.64
Other - 0.26
Actual tax rate after the application of tax effect accounting —% 27.14%

(Note) The note is omitted because the difference between effective statutory tax rate and actual effective tax rate after adoption of tax effect accounting is less than 5% of
effective statutory tax rate for last fiscal year.
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14. Business combination (2) Information that is the basis for understanding the revenues from contracts with customers

Not applicable. Taikisha Group is engaged in construction contracts and so on and sales of equipment and materials for design, supervision, and construction work

in the Green Technology System business and Paint Finishing System business.

15. Asset retirement obligations Construction contracts and so on
Taikisha Group’s performances of construction contracts or other contracts results in arising or increasing in value of an assets, along with these

The Companies are under the term of rental agreements for head offices etc. and have obligations for restitution on their leaving. The obligations are
assets increase, the Company considers that it has transferred control of the assets to the customers over a certain period of time. Therefore,

recognized by way of decreasing deposits.

uo1PNPOJIU|

16. Revenue recognition
(1) Disaggregation of revenues from contracts with customers

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Millions of yen

revenue is recognized based on progress toward complete satisfaction of performance obligations as of the closing date.

Progress is measured as the ratio of the costs incurred to the total estimated costs (input method), because it is possible to make reasonable
estimates of the total estimated costs based on the budgets. In addition, revenue is recognized by cost recovery method in case incurred costs are
expected to be recoverable though the progress of satisfaction of performance obligations cannot be reasonably measured.

Sales of equipment and materials
Regarding Taikisha Group’s sales of equipment and materials, as a result of consideration of indicators related to the transfer of control, such

Gsree” Technology Paint Finishing Total as physical possession of the equipment and materials, significant risks associated with ownership and the transfer of economic value to the

ystem Division System Division s ) . . forred to th dth f f

By region customer, T_a|k|sha‘Group has‘determme_d that cont_rol over the equipment andl materials are transferred to the customers and the performance o
y obligation is satisfied at the time of delivery of equipment and materials. In this reason, revenue is recognized when equipment and materials are

Japan ¥123,081 ¥11,154 ¥134,236 delivered.

Overseas 48,762 31,793 80,556 For these performance obligations, Taikisha Group provides guarantees such as free repair for contractual non-conformities that occur within
Revenues from contracts with customers 171,844 42,948 214,793 a certain period of time after handover or delivery. It provides assurance to the customer that the products will function as intended and in
Other revenues - - - accordance with the specifications agreed upon with the customers. Expected future expenditures are estimated by taking into account historical
Revenues to external customers Y171.844 Y42 948 ¥214 793 warranty rates and are recognized as a provision for warranties for completed construction.

- : - Also, these terms of payments for these performance obligations are common and do not include significant financial elements.
- (3) Information about the relationship between the satisfaction of performance obligations under contracts with
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Creen Technol 'F\,A'.”'?g.s 9fh¥e” customers and cash flows from such contracts, and the amount and timing of revenue expected to be recognized
Srisetr;meﬁ)i\r/]i(s)iggy Syasltrzimllgli\slislir(])% Total from contracts with customers that existed at the end of the current consolidated fiscal year and are expected to be
By region recognized in the following consolidated fiscal year or later

Japan ¥142,494 ¥13,.270 ¥155,764 Balances of contract assets and liabilities

Overseas 74,025 63,766 137,792
Revenues from contracts with customers 216,519 77,036 293,556 As of March 31, 2023 and 2024 Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Other revenues = = = 2023 2024 2024
Revenues to external customers ¥216,519 ¥77,036 ¥293,556 Receivables arising from contracts with customers (Beginning balance) ¥79,781 ¥48,339 $319,284

Receivables arising from contracts with customers (Ending balance) ¥48,339 ¥60,243 $397,908

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars Contract assets (Beginning balance) ¥22,266 ¥66,224 $437,412
Green Technology Paint Finishing ;

StemBEion S Total Contract assets (Ending balance) ¥66,224 ¥59,596 $393,633

By region Contract liabilities (Beginning balance) ¥6,901 ¥23,306 $153,937

Japan $941,177 $87,649 $1,028,826 Contract liabilities (Ending balance) ¥23,306 ¥13,899 $91,803

Overseas 488,939 421,181 910,120
Revenues from contracts with customers 1,430,116 508,830 1,938,946 In the consolidated balance sheets, accounts receivable for completed construction contracts and contract assets arising from contracts with
Other revenues - - - customers are included in notes receivable, accounts receivable from completed construction contracts and other while contract liabilities are
Revenues to external customers $1,430,116 $508,830 $1,938,946 presented as advances received on uncompleted construction contracts.
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The amounts of revenue recognized in the previous fiscal year and the current fiscal year that were included in the balance of contract liabilities
at the beginning of each period are ¥5,577 million for the previous fiscal year and ¥23,657 million (US$156,260 thousand) for the current fiscal
year. The amount of revenue recognized in the previous fiscal year and the current fiscal year from performance obligations that were satisfied (or
partially satisfied) in the previous fiscal years are not material.
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Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The aggregate transaction prices allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations and the period over which revenues are expected to be recognized

are as follows.

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Green Technology Paint Finishing Total
System Division System Division
By region
Japan ¥117,331 ¥26,543 ¥143,875
Overseas 65,561 48,862 114,423
Total ¥182,892 ¥75,406 ¥258,299
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Green Technology Paint Finishing Total
System Division System Division
By region
Japan ¥100,830 ¥35,687 ¥136,517
Overseas 40,573 56,476 97,049
Total ¥141,403 ¥92,163 ¥233,567
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Green Technology Paint Finishing Total
System Division System Division
By region
Japan $665,985 $235,718 $901,703
Overseas 267,987 373,027 641,014
Total $933,972 $608,745 $1,542,717

The transaction prices allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations in the “Green Technology System business” and “Paint Finishing System

business” are expected to be recognized as construction revenue within two years, primarily based on the progress of construction.

Taikisha Integrated Report 2024

17. Segment information

(1) Overview of reportable segment
The reportable segment of the Companies is components for which discrete financial information is available and whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the board of directors to make decisions about resource allocation and to assess performance.

The Companies establish their divisions for types of construction equipment and each division plans the comprehensive domestic and foreign
strategies and do business based on the strategies. Therefore, the Companies are composed of segment for types of construction equipment based
on the divisions. The Companies have two reportable segments “Green Technology System Division” and “Paint Finishing System Division”.

“Green Technology System Division” mainly designs, manages and constructs building HVAC for office buildings, and industrial HVAC for
manufacturing facilities and laboratories. This division also produces and sells related equipment.

“Paint Finishing System Division” mainly designs, manages and constructs automobile paint plants and sells related equipment.

(2) Calculation method of sales and profits or losses, assets or liabilities and others
The accounting treatment of reportable segment is almost the same as the one disclosed in “2. Summary of significant accounting policies”.
The profit of reportable segment is the amount on the basis of ordinary income. Internal profits and transfer amounts between the segments are
calculated based on the market price.
(3) Sales and profits or losses, assets or liabilities and others by reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen

Amount recorded
Total Adjustments in the consolidated
financial statements

Green Technology  Paint Finishing
System Division  System Division

Sales
Sales to customers ¥171,844 ¥47,948 ¥214,793 ¥— ¥214,793
Intersegment 23 12 36 (36) -
Total 171,868 42,960 214,829 (36) 214,793
Segment profit 14,599 (1,606) 12,992 9 13,001
Segment assets 145,565 49,303 194,869 42,236 237,105
Other items
Depreciation and amortization 1,167 837 2,005 (5) 2,000
Amortization of goodwill 400 62 462 - 462
Interest income 159 166 325 (n 324
Interest expenses 5 134 139 12 152
Share of profit (loss) of entities accounted for
using equity method (6) 3 (3) - (3)
Investments in associates accounted for using
equity method - 591 591 - 591
Increase in property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets ¥1,139 ¥1,046 ¥2,185 ¥204 ¥2,390

(Note 1) The amounts of Adjustments are as follows.
Adjustments of Segment profit of ¥9 million include non-allocatable common profits of ¥9 million and other adjustment of ¥0 million. Non-allocatable common profits
are mainly general and administrative expenses, dividend income, etc., which are not attributed to any reportable segment.

Adjustments of Segment assets of ¥42,236 million are elimination of receivable and payable etc., of minus ¥2,917 million and non-allocatable common assets
which are not allocated to any reportable segments of ¥45,154 million. Non-allocatable common assets are mainly cash and deposits, securities, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, and net defined benefit asset, etc., which are not attributed to any reportable segment.

Adjustments of Increase in property, plant and equipment, intangible assets of ¥204 million are buildings and structures, machinery, equipment and vehicles, tools,
furniture and fixtures and software, etc., which are not attributed to any reportable segment.

The allocation method of assets for reportable segment is different from that of related income and expenses.

(Note 2) Segment profit is adjusted to the ordinary income of the consolidated statement of income.
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For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
o [l Amount recorded
om Doy, Gydom D Ol Adustments e conoidted
Sales
Sales to customers ¥216,519 ¥77,036 ¥293,556 ¥— ¥293,556
Intersegment 15 4 20 (20) -
Total 216,535 77,041 293,577 (20) 293,556
Segment profit 17,027 2,804 19,832 19 19,852
Segment assets 143,027 69,474 212,501 53,992 266,494
Other items
Depreciation and amortization 914 737 1,651 (181) 1,469
Amortization of goodwill 417 66 484 - 484
Interest income 352 541 894 2 897
Interest expenses 5 213 219 21 240
Share of profit (loss) of entities accounted for
using equity method - 22 22 - 22
Investments in associates accounted for using
equity method - 642 642 - 642
Increase in property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets ¥3,339 ¥583 ¥3,923 ¥351 ¥4,274

(Note 1) The amounts of Adjustments are as follows.

Adjustments of Segment profit of ¥19 million (US$130 thousand) include non-allocatable common profits of ¥20 million (US$137 thousand) and other adjustment
of minus ¥1 million (minus US$7 thousand). Non-allocatable common profits are mainly general and administrative expenses, dividend income, etc., which are not

attributed to any reportable segment.

Adjustments of Segment assets of ¥53,992 million (US$356,621 thousand) are elimination of receivable and payable etc., of minus ¥4,265 million (minus

US$28,175 thousand) and non-allocatable common assets which are not allocated to any reportable segments of ¥58,258 million (US$384,796 thousand). Non-
allocatable common assets are mainly cash and deposits, securities, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and net defined benefit asset, etc., which are not
attributed to any reportable segment.

Adjustments of Increase in property, plant and equipment, intangible assets of ¥351 million (US$2,323 thousand) are buildings and structures, machinery,

equipment and vehicles, tools, furniture and fixtures and software, etc., which are not attributed to any reportable segment.
The allocation method of assets for reportable segment is different from that of related income and expenses.
(Note 2) Segment profit is adjusted to the ordinary income of the consolidated statement of income.

For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars

. Amount recorded
em Dwion, Sytem by 1ot Adustments e conoldted
Sales
Sales to customers $1,430,117 $508,830  $1,938,947 $—  $1,938,947
Intersegment 103 32 135 (135) -
Total 1,430,220 508,862 1,939,082 (135) 1,938,947
Segment profit 112,470 18,526 130,996 130 131,126
Segment assets 944,698 458,880 1,403,578 356,621 1,760,199
Other items
Depreciation and amortization 6,039 4,868 10,907 (1,201) 9,706
Amortization of goodwill 2,755 442 3,197 = 3,197
Interest income 2,331 3,580 5911 16 5,927
Interest expenses 39 1,411 1,450 140 1,590
Share of profit (loss) of entities accounted for
using equity method - 145 145 - 145
Investments in associates accounted for using
equity method - 4,244 4,244 - 4,244
Increase in property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets $22,057 $3,855 $25,912 $2,322 $28,234
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18. Related information in regard to segment information

(1) Information by product and service
For the year ended March 31, 2023
This item is omitted because similar information is disclosed in “16. Segment information”

For the year ended March 31, 2024
This item is omitted because similar information is disclosed in “16. Segment information”

(2) Sales by region
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Millions of yen
) Southeast Asia East Asia .
e North America Thailand  Other Southeast Asia China Other East Asia India Other Total
¥134,236 ¥6,203 ¥19,719 ¥23,648 ¥13,982 ¥3,058 ¥13,173 ¥770  ¥214,793
(Note) Sales are classified to the countries or regions based on their customers' location.
For the year ended March 31, 2024 -
Millions of yen
: Southeast Asia East Asia :
ez ol M Thailand  Other Southeast Asia China Other East Asia Ll St Tol
¥155,764 ¥20,613 ¥20,596 ¥32,515 ¥27,415 ¥18,293 ¥17,779 ¥578  ¥293,556
(Note) Sales are classified to the countries or regions based on their customers’ location.
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Thousands of U.S. dollars
) Southeast Asia East Asia :
et ol Al Thailand  Other Southeast Asia China Other East Asia India Other okl
$1,028,826  $136,152 $136,043 $214,766 $181,078  $120,827 $117,436 $3,819 $1,938,947
(3) Property, plant and equipment by region
For the year ended March 31, 2023 N
Millions of yen
Japan Thailand Indonesia China India Other Total
¥4,724 ¥381 ¥198 ¥588 ¥2,148 ¥515 ¥8,557
For the year ended March 31, 2024 N
Millions of yen
Japan Thailand Indonesia China India Other Total
¥6,594 ¥386 ¥245 ¥645 ¥3,233 ¥588 ¥11,694
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Japan Thailand Indonesia China India Other Total
$43,557 $2,550 $1,623 $4,266 $21,355 $3,890 $77,241

(4) Sales information by main customer
For the year ended March 31, 2023

The item is omitted because there are no sales to external customers which represented 10% or more of sales of the consolidated statement of

income.

For the year ended March 31, 2024

The item is omitted because there are no sales to external customers which represented 10% or more of sales of the consolidated statement of

income.
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19. Impairment loss by reportable segment

Impairment loss of the non-current assets by reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division  System Division Total Corporate (Note) Total
Impairment loss ¥643 ¥— ¥643 ¥(0) ¥642
(Note) Eliminations/Corporate is generated from elimination of unrealized profits and impairment loss of idle assets.
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division  System Division Total Corporate (Note) Total
Impairment loss ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥0 ¥0
(Note) Eliminations/Corporate is generated from impairment loss of idle assets.
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division System Division Total Corporate Total
Impairment loss $— $— $— $0 $0
20. Amortization and balance of goodwill
(1) Amortization and balance of goodwill by reportable segment
For the year ended March 31, 2023 Millions of yen
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division System Division Total Corporate Total
Balance of goodwill ¥2,913 ¥726 ¥3,640 ¥— ¥3,640
(Note) Amortization of goodwill is omitted because it is already disclosed in the " 16. Segment information”.
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Millions of yen
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division System Division Total Corporate Total
Balance of goodwill ¥2,819 ¥708 ¥3,528 ¥— ¥3,528
(Note) Amortization of goodwill is omitted because it is already disclosed in the " 16. Segment information”.
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. dollars
Green Technology  Paint Finishing Eliminations/
System Division System Division Total Corporate Total
Balance of goodwill $18,624 $4,681 $23,305 $— $23,305

(2) Gain on negative goodwill by reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2023
Not applicable.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Not applicable.

21. Related party transactions

For the year ended March 31, 2023
Not applicable.

For the year ended March 31, 2024
Not applicable.
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22. Details of bonds
No applicable.

23. Details of loans

As of March 31, 2024 Millions of yen ThOUSgQﬁ;Sf o
Beginning balance  Ending balance Ending balance inter/z\;terr:?:(%) Maturity
Short-term loans payable ¥2,836 ¥3,619 $23,909 6.171 -
Current portion of long-term loans payable 106 127 845 0.798 -
Current portion of lease obligations 69 100 666 - -
Long-term loans payable (excluding current August 2026 to
portion) 98 143 948 0.944  June 2031
Lease obligations (excluding current portion) 98 148 983 = '\Nﬂg\;g%gf%gg
Total ¥3,208 ¥4,140 $27,351 - -

(Note 1) The "Average interest rate” is the weighted average interest rate for the ending balance of loans etc.

(Note 2) The average interest rates on lease obligations are not presented because interest equivalents in the total lease obligation are allocated to expenses every year by the

straight-line method.

(Note 3) The annual repayment schedules of long-term loans payable and lease obligations (excluding current portion) subsequent to March 31, 2024 are as follows.

Millions of yen

Over one year within

Over two years within ~ Qver three years within ~ Over four years within

two years three years four years five years
Long-term loans payable ¥101 ¥41 ¥0 ¥—
Lease obligations ¥75 ¥36 ¥26 ¥9

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over one year within

Over two years within  Qver three years within ~ Over four years within

two years three years four years five years
Long-term loans payable $672 $276 $0 $—
Lease obligations $498 $241 $178 $63

24. Details of asset retirement obligations

This item is omitted because asset retirement obligations represented less than 1% of total assets at the beginning of this fiscal year and at the end of

this fiscal year, respectively.

25, Significant subsequent events

Not applicable.
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Report of Independent Auditors

ARY Pur iy
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Fial, ot iy
P, 00 = - Y-

IEDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T the Bodird of Direators of Taikishi Lid,,

Ciplnlan

W have andited the oonsolldated Tinanalal statements of Talkisha Lid, and its subsldiarles (the
Ciroup), which comprise the consolidined balanee sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the consolidated
sintemenis of (neome, comprabmsive Ingome, changes in net assois and ensh Nows for the year then
endad, and a summary of algniNeant sooouniing pollokss and ollisr sxplanstory Information, sll
exjprensed in Jnpinese Yen,

I o epinion, the necompanying congolidatod naneinl siutemenis presend firly, in all materinl
reapois, the sonsol idaied Boanelal postilon of the Group s st Marah 31, 2024, and lis conselidaiod
finanelal performiice and s consolidied il Nows Tor the vear then ended 1i aocordanoe wilh
aceenmblng pringiplos generally secepted in Japan,

Bisls for Cipliiloi

Wo conducted our nudit in seeordamee with ouditing stnndards gonermlly neeepted in Jopan, Our
vaspanslbililos under thise siandards are Turthor doseribod in the Auditor's Respongibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Pinancial Statements seotion of our report, We are Independent of the Group
in neeordance with the ethival requirements that are relevint te our aodit of the Tinimcinl statements in
Jupan, and wo havo fulllllod our othor othionl responsibiiitlos in scoordancs with these roguiremenis,
We believe thist the audic evidence we have obtalned |8 sulfiolent and appropriate to provide s busls for

aur spinio,

Koy Auilin Matigrs

Koy nudit muilters are hose matiers thal, in our professional judiiment, wers of most signifioance in
oir nuedli o the gonsol idatoed Nnnelal siatements of the eurrent peried, These mitter were addresod
i the oontext of our sudii of the consolidaied (inanelal simomenis ws 8 whale, and In forming our
oplindei hereon, and we do nel provide o sepsimie opinlon on (hese matteis,

1. Reisoniblenes of eatiinales regarding the completion perceninge of consliuation sontrols
For which revenue is reognized over time,

Dieseription of Key Awdit Matior Autlitor's Response

Ax deseribed (n the nole 2. Summary of ::1 revey nrhlr.t from NT:Lnlullm hl:‘nn*llrwll in
shgnificant sccouniing policies, (8) Rovenue th revonue In recugnlzed over Hme

and gost recognition, in the Gresn Teohnology | valculated by the progress measured bsed on
System business and the Paint Finishing i0tnl costs of sonairuation, we performaed

fellowing audit procedines (6 ovalioois the
Byniom buslneis, paformanoe obligations for rensgniblencss of estimation on the progies of

construetlon controis, oo, malnly Involving Aot s g g i

dlenijgi, sipervision, and nsalladon i Mo ovalustsd tha deal
g fed the dealgn mid ol
doomed o bo mitlafled over thme, nnd revenue I N PR SR

1% regiognized based on progross wward
complete satisfiction of o performance satimates of talal donsleuotion nal,

abligntion. Apeal Neally wa Mmeussd o ihe control avor
A staied in the notes "Istimaios of porceninge :‘“""’"h' “;*";H":F “‘m‘"- "PI;‘"{;I the
of completion i constrietion gontradts, oo, in iigas io reflec: the changes after ihe
which revenue in recognized over time™ T’“'::::""" by ﬂ"mr;ﬂﬂdr lnr.J aflocatling
undor 1 2) Significant nccounting ostimatos, ol gosts 1o apprapriate gonirens,

The peroentage of eompletion (& mensured by | W lhuntifled ihe contrets in which e

the tatio of conts incurred s of the Mseal year- uncaralngy of the warking budget Is

= W= 11, ) b |, Dl b
Toslyps, NiI-T0ET, JAFRA

UNLThE i | v, g i

end fo estimated toiml eosts bnsud on tie
workiing budget for the consirietion eontrot
{input mathisle), The Croup recorded net snlos
of gompleted gonstragtion contrgis

¥ 270,980 million on o consolldaiod ol for

it flxaal your by iho mailiod,

This estiivated iotil cost is caloulmed by
making working budgeis for ench eonatruetion,
and thie budgeis have high uneortainiy ns ihe
gonstrie o aort eould olunge by the
eonstruetion site conditions, clunges in the
gontont of the wark and price negotinstion with
aontraators afer liunaling the sonsrotions,
Alwo, the necurncy of cost aggregation fo ench
comirned hig algnificant offect on the estimation
of the projgress . Thorefore, wo determ ingd
enlimiites regirding e complation percentige
of gommtruetlon eontragis Tar which revanuo Is
regognbzaed over Ume as a key audli matter,

veluilvaly high by snalyzing the gorrelatlon
botweon the cider amount and the working
Inihget, s will i thi prafll margin of gach
conptruetiin contmet. Por b dentified
constrigtion oonimots, we compared the
intent estimnien of working budgets as of the
fisaal yisar and wit the origingl ones, For
immderinl Mutinilon, wo examined ihe
ronsaniablangas of managoman's poln
oailmuien of the warking budiet ihrough
gl o oonstrigon managers and
Inapeetlon of relovani decomenis such m
quiotanlons and plrohise onders,
Consiruetlon on which we deiermined thai
il ibwerate Jiudggomunt 18 rquilned by e sls,
prelih rite, wnd e progross af the end of the
il year, we parfomied vouoling oo thi
Ingirred costs by relaied documents such i
livwitoe e, sigiliy 10 GoRsIRIGHN
managers, roviewing relnied dodumants mch
il vomsrrition solediles g planiel oo
i, anid fuiharmaore we visited ihi
goiuition site 10 evalaals e gonslslenty
al the progreas batwoan the record md tha
stiuitlin uf fie slle when ietossnry,

Chor Informmsilon

Tha ather Information eomprises e information ineluded (n ihe Integratod roport, bul doos nol
iineliide the consolidnted Mianalal satements and our audior's report hereon, Manageiment |8

responsible for the other information, In addition, those chorged with governnnes ore respansible e

ovarseolng the Group's roporiing procoss of the othor informailon,
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Chur apinien on e conielidated Tnmeinl statements does not cover the other infunmition and we de
Nt sxproas any form of assurmnes gone lusion thereon,

I coiettion with our atdit of the consolidated nnalal satements, our responsibility is w0 reid tie

ather infarmation and, In dolng so, conslder whethor the sther information Is materially inconsistent
with the eonsolidated finaneinl simements or our knowledige obiined in the sudit or otherwise appaars
tor be materinlly missinied,

17 bsiedd o thie work wae binve prformiod, we gonilude that thire 18 5 miteral misstatement of this
ather information, we are required 1o report that fact.

W have nathing io repart 0 this repard,

Wesponsilvlitios of Mansgemeont and Audiit & Buporvisory Boaed for the Consalldaied Finaneial
Hinirmanis

biagement is rsponsible for the prepartion and iy presenmmiion of the oonsolidmed Nnanalal
atntements in neegrdanse with necounting prineiples genemlly secepted in Jopan and far such interinl
gontrol ms mnagamant delormines |s nocossary 1o onable the propamtion of eamolidaied Ananginl
slitainenis that are e from materinl misstalament, whether due (o (rud oF amor,
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i pmpnrinfl th eonnolidnted finnncial siatements, manngemaent is responsible for paseaing thie
Ciroup's shillty to contlnug o8 o golng eoneorn, Ingluding whethar the s of the dissloslng, as
ippieable, mintiors related w golng oonaam and using the golng oo bWisis oF seounting unless
ainingenienl either intemds (o lHguidite the Sroup or e cense operations, or hos ne realistie aliemtive
bt 1z il i,

Audit & Suparvisory Noard Is responsible for overseelng the Group’s finanginl seporting prooess.

Audlive's Responsibilliles for ihe Audli of the Consollduied Financlal Sistemenis

Our oibjeotives are to obisln ressonable sssarnon sbout whsthor the consolldated fnanelal suements

i it whole are free from material missaiement, whetler die 1o Traud of erroe, and 1o iasie an aiditors

repert that ineludes our opinion, Rensonablo ssurmnee 6o bigh level of pssumnge, bul is noi a

guaranien ihat an audit condveied n seeordange wiih sudliing siandards generally sooopied in Japan

will alwiiys deteet i materlal misstaienient whien 0 esiss, Misssienients cain arlse fom iid oF efor

aredd nre eomnidered material if, individually ar in the nggrogate, they could ransonably be expecied 1o

influongo the eeanamic deolsions of usors imkon on the basis of thoss sonsolidated Hnancial

AU RIS,

An purd of mn oudit in sceordnnes wiih auditing standards generlly accopied in Japan, we exoriw

privfosslenal judgmant and maliain professlonsl skapticlsm throughout thie audit, We also;

s+ Jdentily and asscss the Fiska of materlal misstaement of the consolidated Nnanelil salements,
whether duwe e (rmid or erver, design and perform audit procedures respansive 1o those rigks, mnd
obinin mudii evidonco ihai iv sulTiolani and spproprinie to provide s basls for our opinfon, The rikk
of not dateting & matorial missiniement resulting from faud i higher tan for one resuliing (rom
errut, s fnud miy divolve collusion, fogery, intentionnl omiisions, misepreseniations, or the
avarrlde of infernal control,

s Obsiwdn an undersianding of Internal control relevant 1o ihe audit In order o deslgn aud
procedures it are appropriaie in the eireumstangees, bul not for the purpise of expresiing an
apinion on the effectivenem of the Croup’s ntemal gontrol,

= vl the sppropristonoss of scoounting polloles usad and ihe ressoniblensss of nooounting
ettt dind relioed diselosires made by inanageen.

* Conelude én the approprinteness of monagement's wee of iho geing concern banls of seetunting
nivel s an ihe md it avidonce obinlned, whethor s motorial unoorialnty exlsts related (o ovents or
conditions it iy sast significant doubt on e Group's ability o continue is a going concen. 1T
wa gonelude thot o materind uneorininiy exisiy wo nre regquired o draw atienilon in our audiior's
roprt o tho relaied disalosires n e consolldaied finanolsl staomenis or, 5 sueh disolosares ar
Inndegunte, w modily our oplnlon, Our copelisions are based on he audit evidencs obiilned up 1o
Ui chute ol our muadivor*s report. However, futire ovents or conditions may cause the Croup o
eons io continue ue o golng eoncern,

+ Dviilite this oviérall pressmition, struotiang and ooiteit of the consollddaied Dnaiolil smiemans,
tiieluding the disolosures, aid whethar the consolidated Onaneial stalemenis ropresent the
underlying tmnsnetions and evenis in o mannor that sehioves Tl prosoniation,

& Obin suiMolent appropeiate aadin evidenos regarding the Onancisl Infonmailon of O snitles op
Disinean sitivities within the Croup o oxpress mn opiinlon on the consolidated Ginongial
platoments, Wo are respenaible for the direction, supervislon and perfarmaneo of the group audii,
W remnin solely responsible for our mudii opinion,

W communicnte with e audit & supervisory board regarding, smong other matters, e planmed

scxpr el Hhdingg of the audit nnd significant audii fndings, neloding any significant deficione jos in

Intarnnl gontral thnt wo ldentily during cur audit,

We iilso provide the aidit & superyisory boird with o stiteiment that we hive coiiplied witl releviit

oilifenl regquiramants regarding indopendonce, and o communicate with them all ralationahips and

other matiers that may reassnnbly bo thoughi to bear on our Independence, and whore applicable,
relited safegiirds.

From the matiers communicated with the audit & supecvisory boand, we determing those mittees that

warg of maat significanca in the audit of the consolidated Nnanelal stoments of e curmant periaod
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and are fhorelire the koy audii matiors, We desoribe those matiers in our sudlioe's voport unloss lnw or
vogulation prealudes publlo disglosure about the matier or when, I exvemely e clroumsianoes, we
dhoterming that o ey should ot be comimintonted in oiir report beonuse the ndverse sonkequorices

ol dhuing s wonld rensonably be expeciod 1o outwelgh the public intorost bonaliis of such
communieation,

Intoresi roquived fo be disclosed by the Coriifiod Poblle Aceouninnis Aei of Jupan

O T anil Ts doslgnatod engagament parinors do not eve any Interest n the Company and lis
porisolidied submidinries which 8 reguied w be diselosed pamiann o e provisions of the Cerified
Pubilie Accowntants Act of Japan,

Convenlenee Trpnsliion

The mnounts expressed in LS, dollir, which sre provided solely for the convanience of the render,
have boon trmnslniod on the basls sot forh in Mote 1 o the sceompanylng sonsolidaied fnamelal
RiRlomanis,

Hirunki Kagnmi
Digalgnaied Engagemant Paringy
Ceptifed Pilille Aceouiiant

/:‘EI...FJH ﬂéﬂu

Konjl Ofin
Doslgnunivil Engagemeont Parinor
Ceptifed Puablie Avcoiniant

Dﬂaliukb m i;tnihrp

Dalsuke Mivioharn

Doslgnuied Engagomoni Pariner
Clariiied Pubile Aegowniani

A&A Parinors
Tuikyis, Japnn
Dreceiilior 3, 2034
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